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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 

29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301 
603-271-4501 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 4501 

Fax: 603-271-4827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 
\\\'n, .dh hs.n h .gov 

May 28, 2021 

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu 
and the Honorable Council 

State House 
Concord, New Hampshire 03301 

REQUESTED ACTION 

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health 
Services, to enter into a amendment to an existing contract with Community Action Program 
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (Vendor #177203-B003), Concord, NH 03302, for the 
provisions of a Commodity Supplemental Food Program and a Senior Farmers Market Nutrition 
Program, statewide, by increasing the price limitation by $1,028,127 from $1,492,793 to 
$2,520,920 and by extending the completion date from September 30, 2021 to September 30, 
2024 effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds. 

This request is contingent upon a request submitted to the Governor to approve the 
addition of $11,404 for COVID-19 pandemic related administrative costs incurred during State 
Fiscal Year 2021, which will be submitted as an informational item to the Governor and Council 
at a future date. 

The original contract was approved by the Governor and Council on June 21, 2017 (item 
#49), as amended on May 2, 2018 {item #5B) as amended on March 13, 2019 (item #14) and 
most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on January 22, 2020 (item #19). 

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are 
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2022, 2023, and 2024, upon the availability and 
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget 
line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the 
Budget Office, if needed and justified. 

See attached fiscal details. 

EXPLANATION 

The purpose of this request is to continue to provide Commodity Supplemental Foods 
Program and Senior Farmers' Market Nutrition Program seNices statewide to eligible senior 
clients. These programs work to improve the health of low-income elderly persons at least 60 
years of age by supplementing their diets with nutritious foods year round and fresh local fruits 
and vegetables in the summer. 

The Food and Nutrition Service, an agency of the U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) 
administers the Commodity Supplemental Food Program. The USDA purchases food and makes 
it available to the State along with funds for administrative costs. The Community Action Program 
of Belknap and Merrimack Counties will be responsible for doing outreach and identifying potential 
senior participants, screening for eligibility, managing food inventory and maintaining required 
paperwork according to USDA requirements. In addition, they will be responsible for ordering, 

The Depw·tment of Health and Human Sen11ces' Missio11 is to join com1111111ities and families 
in provid ing opportunities for citize11s to achieve health and i11depe11dence. 
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storing and reporting inventory of the USDA Commodity Supplemental Food Program foods. In 
addition, the Contractor will provide referrals to other welfare, nutrition, and health care programs 
such as the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP), Social Security, Medicaid, and 
Medicare. 

The Senior Farmers' Market Nutrition Program provides low-income seniors with fresh 
fruits and vegetables purchased from NH farmers. The Community Action Program of Belknap 
and Merrimack Counties will use prepackaged bundles of fresh fruits and vegetables that are 
purchased directly from authorized NH farmers and distributed directly to eligible clients. In 
addition, they will be required to authorize, monitor, and reimburse the NH eligible farmers. 

Services in this agreement continue to include a statewide Commodity Supplemental 
Foods Program and a statewide Senior Farmers Market Nutrition Program available to eligible 
clients. The programs assist with improving the health of low-income elderly persons who are 
sixty (60) years of age and older by supplementing their diets with nutritious foods year-round and 
fresh local fruits and vegetables during the summer months. 

Approximately 3,600 individuals will be served monthly through September 30, 2024. 

The Department will monitor the Contractor using the following performance measures: 

• The Contractor will provide supplemental foods to a minimum of ninety-five 
percent (95%) of the assigned Commodity Supplemental Foods Program 
caseload in Federal Fiscal Years 2022 - 2024. 

• The Contractor will provide farm fresh bundles to a minimum of ninety-five 
percent (95%) of the assigned Commodity Supplemental Foods Program 
caseload in Federar Fiscal Years 2022 - 2024. 

As referenced in Exhibit C-1 Revisions to General Provisions of the original contract, the 
parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to four (4) additional years, contingent 
upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor 
and Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew services for three (3) of 
the four (4) years available. 

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, low-income elderly 
persons may not have access to nutritious foods or fresh fruits and vegetables to supplement 
their diets. 



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu 
and the Honorable Council 

Page 3 of 3 

Area served: Statewide 

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the US Department of Agriculture, Food and 
Nutrition Service, Commodity Supplemental Food Program, Catalog of Federal Domestic 
Assistance (CFDA) #10.565, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) 204NH814Y8005, and 
from the US Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Service, Senior Farmers Market 
Nutrition Program, CFDA #10.576, FAIN 194NH083Y8314 and FAIN 194NH083Y8313. 

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not 
be requested to support this program. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Lori A. Shibinette 

Commissioner 



05-95-90-902010-52600000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN 
SERVICES, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEAL TH AND 

COMMUNITY SERVICES, WIC SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION PROGRAM 

State 
Class / 

Current Increased Revised 
Fiscal 

Account 
Class Title Job Number Modified (Decreased) Modified 

Year Budget Amount Budget 

102-500734 
Contracts for Prog 

90006007 $315,000 $0 $315,000 
Svc 

2018 102-500734 
Contracts for Prog 

90006024 $1,400 $0 $1 ,400 
Svc 

520-500361 FMNP Food Costs 90006025 $0 $0 $0 

102-500734 
Contracts for Prog 

90076007 $262,475 $0 $262,475 
Svc 

2019 102-500734 
Contracts for Prog 

90006024 $8,400 $0 $8,400 
Svc 

520-500361 FMNP Food Costs 90006025 $77,065 $0 $77,065 

102-500734 
Contracts for Prog 

90006007 $249,802 $0 $249,802 
Svc 

2020 102-500734 
Contracts for Prog 

90006024 $8,400 $0 $8,400 
Svc 

520-500734 FMNP Food Costs 90006025 $77,065 $0 $77,065 

102-500734 
Contracts for 

90006007 $261 ,206 $0 $261 ,206 
Program Svc 

2021 102-500734 
Contracts for Prog 

90006024 $8,400 $0 $8,400 
Svc 

520-500361 FMNP Food Costs 90006025 $77,065 $0 $77,065 

102-500734 
Contracts for Prog 

90006007 $62,450 $0 $62,450 
Svc 

2022 102-500734 Contracts for Prog 90006024 $7,000 $0 $7,000 
Svc 

520-500364 FMNP Food Costs 90006025 $77,065 $0 $77,065 

Subtotals $1,492,793 $0 $1,492,793 



05-95-090--902010-74230000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND 
HUMAN SERVICES, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH 

AND COMMUNITY SERVICES, SENIOR NUTRITION PROGRAMS 

State 
Class / 

Current Increased Revised 
Fiscal 

Account 
Class Title Job Number Modified (Decreased) Modified 

Year Budget Amount Budget 

074-50089 
Grants for Public 

90006007 $0 $192,272 $192,272 
Asst and Relief 

2022 074-50089 
Grants for Public 

90006025 $0 $1 ,536 $1 ,536 Asst and Relief 

074-50089 
Grants for Public 

90006024 $0 $1 ,097 $1 ,097 
Asst and Relief 

074-50089 
Grants for Public 

90006007 $0 $254,722 $254,722 
Asst and Relief 

2023 074-50089 
Grants for Public 

90006025 $0 $78,601 $78,601 Asst and Relief 

074-50089 
Grants for Public 

90006024 $0 $8,098 $8,098 Asst and Relief 

074-50089 
Grants for Public 

90006007 $0 $254,722 $254,722 
Asst and Relief 

2024 074-50089 
Grants for Public 

90006025 $0 $78,601 $78,601 
Asst and Relief 

074-50089 
Grants for Public 

90006024 $0 $8,098 $8,098 
Asst and Relief 

074-50089 
Grants for Public 

90006007 $0 $63,681 $63,681 
Asst and Relief 

2025 074-50089 
Grants for Public 

90006025 $0 $78,601 $78,601 
Asst and Relief 

074-50089 
Grants for Public 

90006024 $0 $8,098 $8,098 
Asst and Rel ief 

Subtotals $0 $1,028,127 $1,028,127 
TOTALS $1,492,793 $1,028,127 $2,520,920 
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #4

This Amendment to the Commodity Supplemental Foods Program and Senior Farmers Market Nutrition
Prograrn contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services ("State" or "Department") and Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Courities, Inc.
("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 21, 2017 (Item #49), as amended on May 2, 2018 (Item #5B), as amended on March 13, 2019
(Item 14), and on January 22, 2020 (Item #19) and the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based
upon the terms and conditions specified In the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums
specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1 - Revisions to
Standard Provisions, Paragraph 3, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties
and appropriate State approval; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 30, 2024

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$2,520,920

3. Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3, to read:

3. Payment for expenses shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures in
accordance with the approved budget line items in Exhibits:

3.1. B-1 Budget through B-20 Budget, Amendment #4, Senior Farmers Market Nutrition
Program Admin - State Fiscal Year 2025.

4. Modify Exhibit B-4 - Amendment #3, Commodity Supplemental Food Program by replacing it in its
entirety with Exhibit B-4 - Amendment #4, Commodity Supplemental Food Program - State Fiscal
Year 2021.

5. Modify Exhibit B-5 - Amendment #3, Commodity Supplemental Food Program by replacing it in its
entirety with Exhibit B-5 - Amendment #4, Commodity Supplemental Food Program - State Fiscal
Year 2022.

6. Modify Exhibit B-10 Budget, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit B-10 Budget, Amendment #
4, Senior Farmers Market Nutrition Program - State Fiscal Year 2022, which is attached hereto
and incorporated by reference herein.

7. Add Exhibit B-11 Budget, Amendment #4, Commodity Supplemental Food Program - State Fiscal
Year 2023, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

8. Add Exhibit B-12 Budget, Amendment #4, Commodity Supplemental Food Program - State Fiscal
Year 2024, which Is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

9. Add Exhibit B-13 Budget, Amendment #4, Commodity Supplemental Food Program - State Fiscal
Year 2025, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

10. Add Exhibit B-14 Budget, Amendment #4, Senior Farmers Market Nutrition Program - State Fiscal
y——OS

Ji!
RFP-2018-DPHS-12-COMMO-01-A04 Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. Contractor Initials ^
A-GA-1.2 Page 1 of 4 Date ^
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Year 2023, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

11. Add Exhibit B-15 Budget, Amendment #4, Senior Farmers Market Nutrition Program - State Fiscal
Year 2024, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

12. Add Exhibit B-16 Budget, Amendment #4, Senior Farmers Market Nutrition Program - State Fiscal
Year 2025, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

RFP-2018-DPHS-12-COMMO-01-A04 Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. Contractor Initials

A-GA-1.2 Page 2 of 4 Date

-OS

S/27/2021
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment #4
remain in full force and effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the Governor's approval, as issued
under the Executive Order 2020-04 as extended by Executive Orders 2020-05, 2020-08, 2020-09, 2020-
10. 2020-14, 2020-15, 2020-16, 2020-17, 2020-18, 2020-20, 2020-21, 2020-23, 2020-24, 2020-25, 2021-
01, 2021-02, 2021-04, 2021-05, 2021-06, and 2021-08, and any subsequent extensions.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

•DocuSloned by:

5/28/2021
"TMc^

Date Name; Patricia m. Tilley

Title: interim Director

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc.

— DocuSlgnvd by:

5/27/2021
OC>71lC4iCi64K..

Date Name: leanne Agri
Title:^ Executive Director

RFP-2018-DPHS-12-COMMO-01-A04 Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, inc.

A-GA-1.2 Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

-DoeuSi^ntd by;

5/28/2021
■o<Cftoaoa6M6<ACi

Date Name: Catherine Pinos
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor approval issued under the
Executive Order 2020-04 as extended by Executive Orders 2020-05, 2020-08, 2020-09, 2020-10, 2020-
14, 2020-15, 2020-16. 2020-17, 2020-18, 2020-20, 2020-21, 2020-23, 2020-24, 2020-25, 2021-01,
2021-02, 2021-04, 2021-05, 2021-06, and 2021-08 and any subsequent extensions.

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

RFP-2018-DPHS-12-COMMO-01-A04 Community Action ProgtBm Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

A-GA-1.2 Page 4 of 4
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Exhtbrt B-4 BudfM. AAWndnMcil M

Now Hampshire Oepertmeni of Health and Human Services

Contractor Nam*: Community Action Progratn B«(kna(xM*rHm*ck CountiM Inc.

Budgol Raeuoci lor. Ccntmodlty SuppI*mental Food PioQiam (CSFP)

BudflM Period; Juiy 1. 2020 • June W, 202t

Total Program Co^ Corrtreclor Share nUatelT
Line Ram

Funded by DHH3 contrael ahata

1. Tdal SalaryWaooa

2. Employe BanelFa 27.361.00 27,361.00 1.S50.00 28,031.00

3. CorvUlania

4. Eouipmerc

Racaii and MalntBnoneo

PiaclmaiVOapradaeon

5. Sueclloa:

Ptiermaey

7. Oeapancy

8j_^<£Tan_^2acae^
Telepnono

_S«Ma^4ton^
Audil and Legal

Boaid Expenaea

0. Software

10. MartetinalCommutaeatima

11. Slrft Educatfcjn aral TralninQ

12. SuPcontiactallwaemantj

13. Other (apeertedetafamarKWoryr.

Waratiouao ampllei

■Rsmw fllRU T
Indirect Aa A Percent o< Direct

Community Action Piogiam Bcftnap Marrlmadt Courajaa hic
RFP-2018-OPHS-12-COUM&01.ACH
Ejdtet 6-4 Budaet. Amandtnani 64
Paoe 1 of 1

-OS

Corttactor kalMa

5/27/2021
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Exhibit Budget. AmrndtMol M

New Hampshire Department of Health and Htanan Services

Contractor Name; ConHnunity Action Progiant BalXnap-ldarrtmaek CountlM Inc.

Budgat Raguoat for. Commodity Supplamantal Feed Piogia»n (CSFP)

Budgat Parted; July 1. 2021 • JurM 30, 2022

Total Program Co^ Contractor Shara / Match ^ur>3aTby D^IMS cordract ahara
Una nom

I. Tot^ S^anrtVaoaa

2. Emptoyaa Banalita

3. Conaiiltartta

*. Eoulemant:

Rantal

Raow and Maailenanca

PueliaioOepradatiert

S. SupoHaa:

Pharmacy

7. Ooaipaney

6. Currart Exoaraaa

Tatephooa

Poataga

Sut>aoiationa

Audaand Laqal

Board Expanaaa

9. Soflwara

10. MarkatlnolCommutdeatteria

11, StaJI Edr,iinitionane Tralninq

1Z S>ihC'>i*iacta/Aoraa"'«'it«
23^_Ooiac_^([>aoAeMafe_rnariA
Warahetiaa auoptiaa

■5B7H3? ■HTSsnr mau T ■BJTJnr
Indlract Aa A Par cant el Okaet

ConuTiurdty Action Piegran Balinap-Marrimack Ctxtrtfaa Inc.
RFP>201S-OPHS-12-COMMO^I-A04
ExNUt S-6 Budgat. AmandmacM IM
Pigalof 1

ConOaclor Mtiala,
5/27/2021
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Exhibit B«10 Budgal, Amendnwit i4

New Hampshlra Department of Health and Hianan Services

CoRtractor Nama: CoRirountty Actkm Proytn Balknip fcUffimacfc Cotrntla* ktc.

e«KlB*t Raquacl lor. Senior Farmoro Marhal Nutrition Prog ram (SFMNP)

Sudeat Parted: Juty 1. 2021 • Jima 30. 2022

Funded l>y d^NS contract aharaTotal Precrtm Coat Contractor Share I Match

1. Totai SataryrWagaa

Z_&ngle]raa_Bana<^
3. Conaidtam

EquipmoiS:

Rapaa and Hiiraanonca

PtachiaoPapcadadon

5, SwUaa:

Pharmacy

6. Tiavd

7, Occupancy

6. Currara Ejtpantaa

Talaphooa

Poataoa

S«*aayboa
AuM and Laoai

Board Erpanaaa

9. Software

10. MarliataioiCommtaiicationa

11. Stafl Education and Trdrwtq

12. Subcor«ract»/Aaraaniar«a

13. Other (apaodedatala wandatory):

Food Coata (Raimtxa'aaii>ai*a to Farmers)

U.lii.U T U.Ui.U
Indiract Aa A Percent ol Direct

Communlly Action Piceram BaOmap-MarTtnack CourOtea Inc.
RFp-20t8-OPHS-12-COMMO«l-A04

Extilbil B-10 Budget. Amandmart M
P^a I of 1

Contractor tnHiala

S/27/2Q21
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ExMbit B-11 Budget. Amendment M

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contiectof Meme: Community Aetten Piogieiii Bettoep Merrtmetfc CouiiUee Ine.

Budget Regueel fort Commodity Supplementel Food Piogrem (CSFP)

Budget Period; July 1,2022 - June 30.2023

Total Program CoeT" Contraelor Share I Match Funded by OHHS contreet altete

■ndicect

K_^oJd_Selaf)£We20^
2^_Emgie)reo_Bena(^^ 27.e03.2S 29,IS3 2S
3. ConeadUcta
4. Equtemenl:

Rental
Repoir end Maintenance
PiaiihaeeTDetiredetton

S. SuwOoe:

PhermecY
Medieat
Cilice

13.440,00
7. Oecupeney
0. Ctetent E»oenoo»

Telatinene
Poetaoe
Subeoiptione
Audrt and Legal

_Board_Ea£«<«^^
Soltwe

10. Martet^aVCommaailceOone
11. StidI Educatiun and Ttalneia
12. Suboo«factalAofeemer«»
13. Othe«(«pecificdotafa meodmorr):
Wafehouee euottOea

12.120.00 T isinui TTSSm ■TTTBW T
Indirect Aa A Percent ol Direct

Comfflundy Action Program BaSuaap-MonlmsA CourMe Inc.
RFP-201»-OPHS-12-COMMCM)I-AIM
ExMbt 8-11 Budget. Amendment <4
P^ 1 o( I

Contractor HtWa

5/27/2021
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EjcMbR B-12 Biideat. Affl*ndm«rM *4

New HafflpsMre Department of Health and Ktanan Services

Contractor Hama: Community Action Prograrn Balknap-UarrtmaekCowntlaa inc.

Oudecl Raquaat Ion Commodity Supptamanlal Food Piogram (CSFP|

Budgat Parlod; July 1. HI) • Juna 30. 2024

Totil Ptcgmm CoSr Contractor Shara / Match Fundad by DHH8 contract thara

Una Itam Dttaci

1, TotN SalwyrWaqaa 4.2SOOO

2^_Ernpto2iaa_Banal^ 27,003.25 1.550 00 29,153 25 27,003.25 1,550.00 29.153.25

3. ConatilarCa

Equlemant:

Rapoa and MaWananca

S- Suooito:

_Plwnnag^

Occupancy

0. Currant ejipanaaa

_Tt4aglgn^

Subaolptiona

Aud« and LaqN

Inauaiica

Boam Enjmaaa

9. Software

to. MartetftiQlConimiaileallona

11. StaH Edueatlen arai Trafcwyq

12. Sut>oor«r»eta/A(naamaraa

13. O0tat(cpao8c0atii*»oiandatoty):

Waehotiaa auppOaa

Indiract

12.129.00 T ■BJTsn? ■nnsnr t T ■BTTsnr
indiract Aa A Parcant o4 Olract

Commuaty Action Pipgram BaOinap-ManimaA Courttac Inc.
RFP-20t80PHS-l2-COMM04)l-A04
ExNb«B-t2 Budget. Amandmant«4
Page t ol 1

Contractor HUati A
■5727/2021
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ExMbH &-t3 Budgtt. Am*ndm«M i4

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Contractor Nm*: CenununltT Aetton Proeram Bolknap-MontmockCounliM bic.

BttOeol RoeuMt fen CommodRr Supptanwntal Food Proeram (CSFP)

Budeat Parted: July 1. 2024 ■ Juna 30. 202S

Lina nam

Total Proeram Coat

Dfaact Indlraei

Contractor Shara I Match Furtead by OHHS contract ahara

I. TotM SManTWaoaa

2. Employaa Banafita

3. CorwAonta

4. Equlpmont:

RanIM

Raoair arri MaWananea

PtachaaalDapraoiaeon

S- Suoodaa:

Pharmacy

_Oeo$en£^
a. CwrarS Exoanaaa

Taleonona

Poataoa

SuhacriptiorM

Auddand Leoal

_Doard_&£anaa^
9. Softwara

10. MMkatlnofConawuiacaButa

11. Stafl Educrdieoand TraWno

12. SubceraraetafAafeamarai

13. OtharlapacrScdatadamannmocy):

Warahouia auppKaa

3.09Z.7S T TEBTW TSSm T U.UJ.U
bidlract Aa A ParcarU oi Diraci

CommiinKy Action Program Baarnap-Marrimack Counttaa Inc.
RFP-20IS-0PH$-12-COMMOO1-A04

EaNte B-l3Budgal. Amandmart M
P^ lo< 1

Contractor InMaM

5/27/2021



DocuSign Envelope ID; B664BCF7-91C9-4BD9-A135-D3DB1900DC38

Eztdbn B>14 Bwdgtt, Amendment M

New Hampshire Department of Health artd Human Services

COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Contrader Neme: Conrmunity Action Proeram Bettoiap Menlmacfc Countiea Inc.

Budeel Requeat for Senler Farmer* Uariiel Nutrition Piugi am (SFUNP)

Budeet Period: July t. 2022 • June M. {CJJ

Line Ram

Total Program Coet' Contractor SIxar* / Match Funtied by DHHS eontreet thai*

t. Tetat SalatyrWaoea

2. Emptoye Betiato

3. ConauRartt

4, Equliimert:

Repair and Maiwenanee

PurcnaaerOeotectaaon

S. Smpaea:

PfiBiiiiacv

Ociajpaney

a. Cwrer* Eicpenaa* •

TNiphooe

Peataaa

StJtoacriptiooa

Aud* and Legal

Board Eaoeneee

to. fctarliatlna/ComrrKaiieatlona

11. StafI Bdueatien and Traiiwiq

12. SubcontractVAofeemera*

13. Other (*r>eolic data** mandatory):

Food Co«t« (Reiintxa*OTeou lo Farmer*!

U.IM.U UiMU
indirect A* A Percent o< Oireel

Cemmtmlly Action Progran BeStnapJtterrfenaek Counbe* Inc.
RFP-20ia-0PH&-12-COMMOO1-A04

ExNbtl B-14 Bulget. Amendnei* *4
Page l of I

Ctifltrsctof Msiils

5/27/2021
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EzMWt 9-1$ BudQit, Amendment M

New Hampshire Department of Health arxJ Human Services

Contractor Name: Community Action Ptoptam Bellutjp Menimack CounUea Ine.
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To the Board of Directors dovhr • concord

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
Concord. New Hampshire

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of
financial position as of February 29, 2020 and February 28, 2019, and the related statements
of activities, functional expenses and cash flows, and notes to the financial statements for the
years then ended.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors* Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Govemment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States,
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors'
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but. not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's intemal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

1
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. as of
February 29, 2020 and February 28, 2019, and the changes in their net assets and their cash
flows for the years then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as
a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of .federal awards, as required by Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit otthe financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reportiha Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have'also issued our report dated
January 5, 2021, on our consideration of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack
Counties, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting
and compliance.

0UD&yyyy^^ 4-

Concord, New Hampshire
January 5, 2021
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COIVIIVIUNITY ACttON PROGRAM BELKNAP ■ MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

STATEMENtS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FEBRUARY 29. 2020 AND FEBRUARY 28. 2019

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

Accounts receivable

Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Investments

Total current assets

ASSETS

2020

549;026

2,556.855

22.916

44.159
110.076

3,283,034

2019

$  1.411,762

2,321,041

22,800

52,632
102,522

3,910,757

PROPERTY

Land, buildings and improvements
Equipment, fumilure and vehicles

Total property

Less accumulated depreciation

Property, net

OTHER ASSETS

Due from related party

Total other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

"5,544,770
5,652,539

11,197,309

6,695,428

4,501,881

139.441

139.441

4,749,673
5,979,320

10.728,993

6,330.580

4.398,413

139,441

139,441

$ 7,924,356 $ 8,448,611

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of notes payable
Line of credit

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

Total current liabilities

LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Notes payable, less current portion shown above

Total liabilities

$  201,245'

550;0a0

1.160.635

757,999
1.084,516

3,754,395

814,253

4,568,648

$  183,269

1.069.16,5
1,066,748
99"8.3i32

3.317,514

781.385

4.098:899

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions
With donor restrictions

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

See Notes to Financial Statements

2,992,894
362,814

3,355.706

3.842,297
507,415

4,349,7.12

$ . 7,924,356 $ 8,448,611
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r.OMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2020

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant awards

Other funds

in-kind

United Way

Total revenues and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS

Total

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages
Payroll taxes and benefits
Travel

Occupancy
Program services
Other costs

Depreciation
In-kind

Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Without Donor

Restrictions

With Donor

Restrictions

2020

Total

$  18.276.247

2,437,366
920.759
11,938

$
2,986,021

$  18.276,247
5.423,387

920,759
"11,938

21.646.310 2,986,021 24,632,331

3.130,622 (3.130.622) .

24.776.932 (144,601) 24.632:331

9,213.867

2.508,455

322,894

1,393,046

9,231.697

1.634.451

401,166
920.759

-

9,213.867

2,508,455
322.894

1,393,046
9.231.697

1,634.451

401,166
920.759

25.626.335 25.626.335

(849.403) (144,601) (994,004)

3.842.297 507.-415 4.349.712

$  2.992.894 $  362,8.14 $  3.355.708

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2019

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant awards

Other funds

In-kind

United Way

Total revenues and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS

Total

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages
Payroll taxes and benefits
Travel

Occupancy
Program services
Other costs

Depreciation
In-kind

Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Without Donor

Restrictions

With Donor

Restrictions

2019

Total

$  19,205,554

4,706.408
829,464
18,227

$

169,246

.$ 19,205,554

4,875,654

829,464
18.227

24,759,653 ,169,246 24.928.899

364,684 (364;684j .

25,124,337 (195.438) 24,928,899

8.905,642

2,428,774

324,491

1,310,477

.8,941,429

1,707:999
330;491
829,924

-

8,905,642

2,428.774

324,491

1,310,477

8,941,429

1,707,999

330,491
829.924

24,779,227 24,779.227

345,110 (195,438) 1'49,672

3.497.187 .702,853 4,200.040

$  3,842,297 $  507,415 $  4.349.712

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COIVIMUNITY ACTION PROGRAIVI BELKNAP . MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2020 AND FEBRUARY 28. 2019

2020 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to

net cash (used in) provided by operating activities;
Depreciation
Decrease (Increase) in current assets:

Accounts receivable

Inventory
Prepaid expenses

Decrease (increase) in current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additions to property
Investment in partnership

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net borrowings on line of credit
Repayment of long term debt

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET DECREASE IN CASH

CASH BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH BALANCE, END OF YEAR

$  (994,004) $. 149,672

401.166

(235.814)
(116)

8.473

91,470

(308,749)
86,184

(951.390)

(268.634)
(7.556)

(276.190)

550,000
(185.156)

364.844

(862,736)

1.411,762

330,491

:672,364

3,767
35,655

(374,532)
10.072

(189,001)

638.488.

(803,770)
(3.769)

(807,539)

(170.872)

(170,872)

(339.923)

1,751.685

549.026 $  1,411,762

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION;

Cash paid during the year for interest

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING AND
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Property purchased with new debt

73,255. $

$  236,000

63.133,

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COIVIMUNITY ACTION PROGRAIVI BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2020

Proaram Manaaement Total

Salaries and wages $  8,797.236 $ 416,631 ■$ 9.213,867
Payroll taxes and benefits 2.468,991 39,464 2';508,455
Travel 322".870 24 322,894-
Occupancy 1,225.265 167,781 1,393,0^6
Program Services 9,231,697 - 9;231,697
Other costs:

Accounting fees 475 60,771 61,246
Legal fees - 9,261 9,261
Supplies 214,778 31,442 246,220
Postage and shipping 19,055 34,399 53.454
Equipmerit rental and maintenance 3,627 275 3,902
Printing and publications 27,109 6,562 33,671
Conferences, conventions and rneetings 27,248 4,662 31,910
Interest 57,543 15,712 73,255
Insurance 133,619 5,949 139,568
Membership fees 12,862 7,586 20,448
Utility and maintenance 170,336 48,114 218,450
Computer services 51,908 - 51,908
Other 663,656 27,502 691,158

Depreciation 401.166 - 401,166
In-kind 920,759 - 920.759

Total functional expenses $  24.750,200 $ 876,135 $ 25,626,335

See Notes to Financial Statements
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■COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP . MERRIIVIACK COUNTIES. INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2019

Salaries and wages
Payroll taxes and benefits
Travel .
Occupancy
Program Services
Other costs:

Accounting fees
Legal fees
Supplies
Postage and shipping
Equipment rental and maintenance
Printing and publications
Conferences, conventions and meetings
Interest
Insurance
Membership fees
Utility and maintenance
Computer services
Other

Depreciation
In-kind

Total functional expenses

Proa ram Manaaemcnt Total

:$ a.682.073 $ 223,569 ,$ 8,905,6^12
2,320,432 108,342 2,428,774,

•  323.333 1,158 324,491"
1,293,439 17.038 1.310;477
8,941,429 - 8,941,429.

57,892 57,892
19,554 3.520, '  23,074

264.548 - 284,548
53,134 - 53,134

2,208 - 2,208
45,786 3,732 49,518
22,840 27,848 50.688
46.478 16,655 63,133

143,136 6,760 149,896
9,891 9,093 18,984

214,214 - 214,214
37,562 1,304 38,866

701,232 612 701,844
330,491 330,491
829,924 - 829,924

$ 24.301.704 $ 477.523 $ 24,779,227

See Notes to Financial Statements
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BELKNAP - IVIERRIIVIACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2020 AND FEBRUARY 28. 2019

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUIVIIVIARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Organization

Community Action Program Belknap - Merrimack Counties, Inc. (the Organization) is a
New Hampshire nonprofit organization that serves nutritional, health, living and support
needs of the low Income and elderly clients in the two county service areas, as well as
state wide. These services are provided with the financial support of various federal,
state, county and local organizations.

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual, basis of
accounting in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in the
United State of America.

New Accounting Pronouncement

During the year, the Organization adopted the provisions of FASB ASU 2018-08,
Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and
Contributions Made (Topic 958). This accouriting standard is meant to help not-for-profit
entities evaluate whether transactions should be accounted for as contributions or as

exchange transactions and. if the transaction is identified as a contribution, whether it is
conditional or unconditional. ASU 2018-08 clarifies how an organization determines
whether a resource provider is receiving commensurate value in return for a grant. If the
resource provider does receive commensurate value from the grant recipient, the
transaction is an exchange transaction and would follow the guidance under ASU 2014-
09 (FASB ASC Topic 606). If no commensurate value is received by the grant maker,
the transfer is a contribution. ASU 2018-08 stresses that the value received by the
general public as a result of the grant is not considered to be commensurate value
received by the provider of the grant. Results for reporting the years ending February
29, 2020 and February 28, 2019 are presented under FASB ASU 2018-08. The
comparative information has not been restated and continues to be reported under the
accounting standards in effect in those reporting periods. There was no material impact
to the financial statements as a result of adoption. Accordingly, no adjustment to
operiing net assets was recorded.

Financial Statement Presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, which require the Organization to report
information regarding its financial position and activities according to the following net
asset classifications:
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Net assets without donor restrictions include net assets that are not

subject to any donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any
purpose In performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These
net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's
management and board of directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions include net assets subject to
stipulations imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are
temporary in nature;'those restrictions will be met by actions of the
Organization or by passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual
in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in
perpetuity.

Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor
restrictions. When restrictions expire, net assets are reclassified from net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions in the statement of activities.

The Organization had net assets with donor restrictions of $362,814 and $507,415 at
February 29, 2020 and February 28, 2019, respectively. See Note 13.

Income Taxes

The Organization is organized as a nonprofit corporation and Is exempt from federal
income taxes under Intemal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3). The Internal Revenue
Service has determined them to be other than a private foundation.

The Organization files information returns in the United States and the State of New
Hampshire. The Organization is no longer subject to examinations by tax authorities for
years before 2017.

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740 (ASC 740), Accounting for Income Taxes,
established the mlhimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for measuring, the
benefits of tax return positions in financial statements. The Organization has analyzed
its tax position taken on its information returns for the years (2017 through 2020), and
has concluded that no additional provision for income taxes is necessary in the
Organization's financial statements.

tPropertv

Property and equipment is recorded at cost or, if donated, at the approximate fair value
at the date of the donation. Assets purchased with a useful life in excess of one year
and exceeding $5,000 are capitalized unless a lower threshold Is required by certain
funding sources. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the related assets as follows:

Buildings and improvements 40 years
Equipment, furniture and vehicles 3 - 7 years

10
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Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements In conformity with United States generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.I Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all liquid
Investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be cash
equivalents. The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts, which at
times may exceed federally insured limits. The Organization has not experienced any
losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant risk with
respect to these accounts.

Contributed Services

Donated sen/ices are recognized as contributions in accordance with FASB ASC No.
958, Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made, if the services (a)
create or enhance non-financial assets or (b) require specialized skills, and would
otherwise be purchased by the Agency.

Volunteers provided various services throughout the year that are not recognized as
contrib.utiori.s in the financial statements since the recognition criteria under FASB ASC
No. 958 weire not met.

In-Kind Donatiohs / Noncash Transactions
Donated facilities, services and supplies are reflected :as revenue and expense in the
accompanying financial istatefnehts, if the criteria for recogriition is met. This represents
the .estimated fair value for the supplies arid space that the Ofgariization might
incur under normal , operating activities. The Organization received $920,759 and
$829,924 In donated facilities, services and supplies for the years ended February: 29.
2020 arid february 28, 2019, respectively, as follows;

The Organization receives coritfibuted professional services that are required to be
recorded in acco/darice with FASB ASC No. 958. The estimated fair value of these
services was deterrnined to be $52,181 and $35,519 for the years ended February 29,
2020 and February 28, 2019, respectively.

The Organizatipri also receives coritfibuted food comrhodities and other goods that are
required to be recorded in accordance with FASB ASC No. 958. The estimated fair
value of these food commodities and goods was determined to; be $868;5.78 and
$793,945 for the years ended February 29, 2020 and February 28, 2019, respectively.

Advertising

The Organization expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Total advertising
costs for the years ended February 29, 2020 and February 28, 2020 totaled $46,899
and $54,461, respectively.

Inventory

Inventory consists of weatherization supplies and work in process and is valued at the
lower of cost or net realizable value, using the first-in, first-out method.

11
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Functional Ailocatioh of Expenses
The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been presented in
the Statements of Functional Expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated
among the program services and supporting activities benefited. Expenses are charged
to each program based on the direct expenses incurred or estimated usage based on
time spent on each program by staff.

Expense Method of allocation

Wages and benefits Time and effort
Depreciation Actual assets used by program
All other expenses Direct assignment

2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY
The following represents the Organization's financial assets as of February 29, 2020
and February 28, 2019:

2020 2019

Financial assets at year end;
Cash and cash equivalents, undeslgnated $ 549,026 $ 1i411,762
Accounts receivable 2,556,855 2,321,041
Investments 110.078 1 02.522

Total financial assets 3.215.959 3.835.325
Less amounts not available to be used within

one year:

Net assets with donor restrictions 362,814 507,415
Less net assets with time restrictions to be

met in less than a year : : _i

Amounts not available within one year 362.814 507.415

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months $ 2:853.145 .$ 3.327.910

It is the Organization's goal to maintain financial assets to meet 60 days of operating
expenses which approximates $3,995,000 and $3,880,000_ respectively, at February 29,
2020 and 2019. The Organization has an available line of credit in the amount of
$50,000 and $200,000, respectively, at February 29, 2020 and February 28, 2019.

3. ACCOUNTS REbEIVABLE
Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year end. Balances that are still outstanding after management
has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation
allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The allowance for uncollectible accounts
was estimated to be zero at February 29, 2020 and February 28, 2019. The
Organization has no policy for charging interest on overdue accounts.
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4. REFUNDABLE ADVANCES

Grants received In advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized as
revenue in the period in which the related services or expenditures are performed or
incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met aggregated
$1,084,516 and $998,332 as of February 29, 2020 and February 28, 2019, respectively.

5. RETIREIVIENT PLAN

The Organization has a qualified contributory pension plan which covers substantially all
employees. The cost of the plan is charged to programs administered by the
Organization. The expense of the plan for the year ended February 29, 2020 and
February 28, 2019 totaled $181,057 and $184,961, respectively.

6. LEASED FACILITIES

Facilities occupied by the Organization for its community service programs are leased
under various operating leases. The lease terms range from month to month to twenty
years. For the year ended February 29, 2020 and February 28; 2019, the annual lease
expense for the leased facilities was $546,861 and $480,258, respectively.

The approximate future minimum lease payments on the above leases are as follows;

Year Ended

Februarv 28 Amount

2021 $  456.568

2022 138,021

2023 . 125,947

2024. 105,882

2025 98,362

Thereafter 876.241

Total i=!.3(?1.921

7. ACCRUED EARNED TIIVIE
The Organization has accrued a liability for future annual leave time that its employees
have earned and vested with the employees in the amount of $341,532 and $377,163 at
February 29, 2020 and 2019. respectively.

8. BANK LINE OF CREDIT
The "Organization has a $200,000 revolving line of credit agreement (the line) with a
bank that is due on demand. The line calls for monthly variable Interest payments based
on the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate (6.00% and 5.50% at February 29. 2020 and
February 28. 2019, respectively) plus 1%, but not less than 6% per annum. The line is
secured by all the Organization's assets. There was a balance of $200,000 outstanding
at February 29, 2020. There was no outstanding balance on the line at February 28,
2019.
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During the year ended February 29, 2020 the Organization entered into an additional
revolving line of credit agreement (the line) in the amount of $400,000, with a bank that
is due on demand. The line calls for monthly variable interest payments based on the
LIBOR rate (4.02% at February 29, 2020). The line is secured by all the Organization's
assets. There was a balance of $350,000 outstanding at February 29, 2020.

9. LONG TERM DEBT

Long term debt consisted of the following as of February 29, 2020 and February 28,
2019;

2020 2019

5.50% note payable to a financial institution in
monthly installments of $1,634 through July 2039.
The note is secured by property of the Organization. $ 232,259 $

5.75% note payable to a financial institution in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$13,912 through July 2023. The note is secured by
property of the Organization for Lakes Region Family
Center. 520,492 649,372

3.00% note payable to the City of Concord for
leasehold improvements in monthly installments for
principal and interest of $747 through May 2027. The
note is secured by property of the Organization for the
agency administrative building renovations. 57,848 64,943

7.00% note payable to a bank in monthly installments
for principal and interest of $4,842 through May 2023.
The note is secured by a first real estate mortgage
and assignment of rents and leases on property
located in Concord, New Hampshire for Early Head
Start. 204.899 250.339

Total 1,015,498 964,654

Less amounts due within one year 201.245 183.269

Long term portion £ 814.253 $ 781.385
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The scheduled maturities of long-term debt as of February 29, 2020 were as follows:

Vear Ending
February 28 Amount

2021 $ 201,245
2022 213,444

2023 226,567
2024 143,136
2025 16.749

Thereafter 214.357

10. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consisted of the following as of February 29, 2020 and
February 28, 2019:

2020 2019

Land $ 168,676 $ 168,676
Building and improvements 5,376,094 4,580;996
Equipment and vehicles 5.652.539 5;-979.32i

11,197,309 10,728,993
Less accumulated depreciation 6.695.428 6.330.580

Property and equipment, net $ 4.501.881 $ 4.398.413

Depreciation expense for the years ended February 29, 2020 and February 28, 2019
was $401,166 and $330,491, respectively.

11. CONTINGENCIES
The Organization receives grant funding from various sources. Under the terms of these
agreements, the Organization is required to use the funds within a certain period and for
purposes specified by the governing laws and regulations. If expenditures were found
not to have been made in compliance with the laws and regulations, the Organization
might be required to repay the funds. No provisions have been made for this
contingency because specific amounts, if any, have not been determined or assessed
as of February 29, 2020.

12. CONCENTRATION OF RISK
For the years ended February 29, 2020 and February 28, 2019, approximately
$12,100,000 (51%) and $12,000,000 (48%), respectively, of the Organization's total
revenue was received from the Department of Health and Human Services. The future
scale and nature of the Organization is dependent upon continued support from this
department.
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13. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following specific program
services as of February 29, 2020 and February 28, 2019:

2020 2019

NH Food Pantry Coalition
Senior Center

Elder Services

Mary Gale
NH Rotary Food Challenge
Summer Feeding
Common Pantry
Caring Fund
Agency - FAP
Agency Head Start
Community Crisis
Other Programs

Total net assets with donor restrictions

$ 663 $ 663

141,114 137,743
2,867 200,912

24,082 -

5,068 5,068

18,840 -

4,764 5,534

9.064 11,811
4,751 6,342

145,747 137,967

2,550 350

3.304 1.025

I— 362.814 $

14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Organization is related to the following corporation as a result of common
management:

Related Party Function

CAPBMC Development Corporation Real Estate Development

There was $139,441 due from CAPBMC Development Corporation at both February 29.
2020 and February 28, 2019.

The Organization serves as the management agent for the following organizations:

Related Party Function

Belmont Elderly Housing, Inc.
Epsom Elderly Housing, Inc.
Alton Housing for the Elderly, Inc.
Pembroke Housing for the Elderly, Inc.
Newbury Elderly Housing, Inc.
Kearsarge Elderly Housing, Inc.
Riverside Housing Corporation
Sandy Ledge Limited Partnership

Twin Rivers Community Corporation
Ozanam Place, Inc.

TRCC Housing Limited Partnership I

HUD Property
HUD Property
HUD Property
HUD Property
HUD Property
HUD Property
HUD Property
Low Income Housing Tax

Credit Property
Property Development
Transitional Supportive

Services

Low Income Housing Tax
Credit Property
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The services performed by the Organization included, marketing, accounting, tenant
selection (for the HUD properties), HUD compliance (for the HUD properties), and
maintenance of property.

The total amount due from the related parties (collectively) at February 29, 202O and
February 28. 2019 was $198,763 and $185,937, respectively, and is included in
accounts receivables.

15. RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year financial statements have been
reclassified to enhance the comparability with the presentation of the current year.

16. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. has also invested money
relating to its Fix-it program in certain mutual funds. The fair value of the mutual funds
totaled $109,078 and $101,522 at February 29, 2020 and February 28, 2019,
reispectively.

ASC Topic No. 825-10, Financial Instruments, provides a definition of fair value which
focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a framework in generally
accepted accounting principles for measuring fair value which emphasizes that fair value is
a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement, and requires
expanded disclosures about fair value measurements. In accordarice with FASB ASC 820,
the Organization may use valuation techniques consistent with market, income and cost
■approaches to measure fair value. As a basis for considering market participant
assumptions in fair value measurements, FASB ASC 820 establishes a fair value
hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used In measuring fair values. The hierarchy gives
the highest priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest priority to Level 3
measurements. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under FASB ASC 820 are
described as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in
active markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market
prices in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as
of the reporting date, and fair value can be determined through the use of
models or other valuation methodologies.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs in
situations where there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability
and the reporting entity makes estimates and assumptions related to the
pricing of the asset or liability including assumptions regarding risk.
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At February 29, 2020 and February 28. 2019, the Organization's Investments were
classified as Level 1 and were based on fair value.

Fair Value Measurements using Significant Observable Inputs (Level 1)

2020 2019

Beginning balance - mutual funds $ 101,522 $ 97,753
Total gains (losses) - mutual funds 7.556 3.769

Ending balance - mutual funds $ 109.078 ■£ 101.522

The carrying amount of cash, current assets, other assets and current liabilities,
approximates fair value because of the short maturity of those instruments.

The Organization also has $1,000 invested in a Partnership, The Lakes Region
Partnership for Public Health, at February 29, 2020 and February 28, 2019.

17. FISCAL AGENT
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. acts as the fiscal agent
for the following community organizations: Franklin Community Services Building
(Franklin), the Common Pantry (Laconia), the Caring Fund (Meredith), the NH Food
Pantry Coalition, the NH Rotary Food Challenge and FGP/SCP Association Region 1.
The Agency provides the management and oversight of the revenues received
(donations) and the expenses (utilities, food and emergency services).

18. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of financial
position date, but before the financial statements are available to be issued. Recognized
subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional evidence about
conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date, including the
estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements. Non-recognized
subsequent events are events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist
at the statement of financial position date, but arose after that date. Management has
evaluated subsequent events through January 5, 2021, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.

The impact of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) and measures to prevent its spread
are affecting the Organization's business. The significance of the irripact of these
disruptions, including the extent of their adverse impact on the Organization's financial
and operational results, will be dictated by the length of time that such disruptions
continue and, in turn, will depend on the currently unknowable duration of the COVID-19
pandemic and the impact of governmental regulations that might be imposed in
response to the pandemic.
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In April 2020, the Organization received loan proceeds in the amount of $1,935,300
under the Paycheck Protection Program ("PPP"). The PPP, is established as part of the
Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act ("CARES Act").

If the Organization does not meet the loan criteria, the unforgiven portion of the PPP
loan is payable over five years at an interest rate of 1%, w/ith a deferral of payments for
the first six months. The Organization intends to use the proceeds for purposes
consistent with the PPP. Through the date of this report, the final determination of
forgiveness has not occurred.
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SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

(See Independent Auditors' Report)



r.nwiMUNlTY ACTION PROGRAM BB-KMAP ■ MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INQ.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND NpN-FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2020

FEDERAL GRANTOR/

PROGRAM TITLE

US DEPARTMENT OF H^LTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Head Start

Head Steirt

Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program
Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program-WX
Low Income Home Energy Assistance ProgranvHRRP

Community Services Block Grant

Social Services Block Grant-Home Delivered & Congregate Meals
Social Services Blod< Grant-Service Link

TANF CLUSTER

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families-Family Planning
Temporary /Assistance for Needy Famllies-Worlcplace Success

AGING CLUSTER

Trtle 111. Part B-Senior Transportation
Title III, Part C-Congregate Meals
Trtle III. Part C-Home Delivered Meals
NSIP

CHILD CARE AND DEVELOPMENT FUND CLUSTER
Child Care & Development Block Grant
Child Care Mandatory & Matching Funds of the CCDF

MEDICAID CLUSTER

Medical /Assistance Program

Medical Assistance Program - Veterans

Family Planning - Services
PuMc Heallh Emefnency Reapoto®: Cooperatiw® Agfeement for Eitwrgency Reipofts®; Pt±fic Health

MATERNAL. INFANT. AND EARLY CHILDHOOD HOME VISITING CLUSTER
ACA - Maternal. Infant & Early Childhood Home Vetting Program

ACA - /Aging & Disability Resource Center
National Family Caregiver Support. Title 111, Part E-Service Link
Special Programs for Aging. Title IV-Service Unk

CMS Research Demonstrations & Evaluations

CFDA

NUMBER

93.600

93.600

93.568

93.568

93.568

93.569

PASS THROUGH NAME

State of New Hampshire

State of New Hampshire

State of New Hampshire

State of New Hampshire

State of New Hampshire

NCS
TCo

- <D

k
^ CD
G- o
r fG->
G- w
m

TC6
u

O

G-5
<o
O
o

93.667 State of New Hampshire
93.667 State of New Hampshire 09

T(

93.558 State of New Hampshire 05-S

93.558 Southern New Hampshire Services 05-S

CLL

93.044 State of New Hampshire 05-E

93;045.. State of New Hampshire 05-S

.93.045: State of New Hampshire 05-5

93.053 State of New Hampshire 105<

CLL

93.575 State of New Hampshire NOI

93.596 State of New Hampshire NOf

CLL

93;-778 State of New Hampshire 102

93.778 Gateways Community Services
TOT

93.217 State of New Hampshire 05-E

93.354 State of New Hampshire U62

93.505 State of New Hampshire 05-E

93.517 State of New Hampshire 102-

93:052 State of New Hampshire 102

.93.048 State of New Hampshire 102

:9i779 State of New Hampshire 102



FEDERAL GRANTOR/

PROGRAM TITLE

FOOD DISTRIBUTION CLUSTER

Commodity Supplemental Food Program
Emergency Food Assistance ProgranvAdmlnistration
Emergency Food Assistance Program

Trade Mitigation

Rural Housing Preservation Grant

CORPORATION FOR NATIONAL & COMMUNITY SERVICES

FOSTER GRANDPARENTS/SENIOR COMPANION CLUSTER
Senior Companion Program

US DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Formula Grants for Rural Areas-Concord Transit

TRANSIT SERVICES PROGRAMS CLUSTER

Enhanced Mobility of Seniors & Ind. W/Disabilities-CAT

Enhanced Mobility of Seniors & Ind. W/Dlsabilities-Rural Transportation
Enhanced Mobility of Seniors & Ind. W/Disabi!ities-Volunteer Drivers

US DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT

Supportive Housing Program
Supportive Housing Program-Outreadh

Emergency Solutions Grant
Continuum of Care Program

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Weatheiization Assistance for Low Income Persons

US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

Senior Community Service Employment Program

WlAWlOA CLUSTER

CFDA

NUMBER PASS THROUGH NAME

.10:555

10:568

io;569

10.178

10.433

State of New Hampshire

State of New Hampshire
State of New Hampshire

State of New Hampshire

94.016

15CD

81 §
81S

Cl?
CO

N<S
CD

NcS
>

U:S
6
u

O
CO

IC o
r>,0
Clo

20.509 State of New Hampshire-Department of Transportation NH-

20.513 State of New Hampshire-Department of Transportation

20.513 State of New Hampshire-Department of Transportation
20.513 Merrimack County

NH-

NH-

NH-

CLl

DO"

14.235 State of New Hampshire
14.235 State of New Hampshire

05-!

05-!

14.231 State of New Hampshire
14.267 State of New Hampshire

05-!

05-!

HUl

81.042 State of Nev/ Hampshire EE(

DO

17.235 State of New Hampshire 104



DocuSign Envelope ID: B664BCF7-91C9-48D9-A135-D3DB1900DC38

COIVIIVIUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2020

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule)
includes the federal award activity of Community Action Program Belknap-
Merhmack Counties, Inc. under programs of the federal government for the year
ended February 29, 2020. The information in this Schedule is presented in
accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., it is not intended to and does not present the
financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the Organization.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on .the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the
Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of
business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years.

NOTE 3 INDIRECT COST RATE

Comrhunity Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. has elected not to
use the ten percent de mlnimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform
Guidance.

NOTE 4 FOOD COMMODITIES AND VEHICLES

Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the Schedule at the fair value of the
commodities received and disbursed.
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COMIVIUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-IVlERRIIVnACK COUNTIES. IMC.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COWIPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
Concord, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance vvith the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of February 29, 2020, and
the related statements of activities, cash flows, and functional expenses for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated January 5, 2021.

Internal Control Over Financial.Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting
(internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal
control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of Internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. We did identify
a deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings' and
questioned costs as item 2020-001 that we consider to be a material weakness.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s financial statements are free from material misstatement,
we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Reboft

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards in considering the
Organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

Concord, New Hampshire
January 5, 2021
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COIVIIVIUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-IVIERRIIVIACK COUNTIES. INC.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COWIPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
Concord, New Hampshire

Report on CompHance for Each Major Federal ProQram
We have audited Community Action Program. Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance
with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that
could have, a direct and material effect on each of Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended February 29. 2020.
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s major federal programs are
identified in the-summary of auditors* results section of the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Community Action
■ Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the
types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the
Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance.
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Obinioh on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Community Action Program Belknap-Merrlmack Counties, Inc. complied, in all
material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have
a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended February
29. 2020.

Report on internal Control Over Compliance
Management of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrlmack Counties, Inc. is responsible
for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered Community Action Program Belknap-Merrlmack Counties, Inc.'s
internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for
each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of Internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc.'s Internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance-does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness In
internal control over compliance Is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over. compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance Is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in Internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program' that is less severe
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of Internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed, to Identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies in Internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been Identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report Is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Concord, New Hampshire
January 5, 2021
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROiSRAM BELKNAP-MERRliVlACK COUNTIES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2020

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial statements
of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. were prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

2. One material weakness relating to the audit of the financial statements is reported in the
Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Community Action
Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, inc., which would be required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
On Intema! Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No material
weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all
major programs.

6. There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR
section 200.516(a).

7. The programs tested as major programs include:
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Low Income Home Energy Assistance
Program 93.568, Head Start 93.600, Community Services Block Grant 93.569, U.S.
Department of Agriculture, Food Distribution Cluster, 10.565,10.568, 10.569, Trade
Mitigation 10.178, NON-FEDERAL Public Utilities Companies, Electrical Assistance
Program.

■8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. was determined to not be a
low-risk audrtee.
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FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

MATERIAL WEAKNESS

2020-001

■ Condition: The financial statements presented to the auditor at the beginning of fieldwork
understated revenue and expenses by a material amount. This was primarily the result of
improper cut off due to revenue and expenses related to the fiscal year under audit being
recorded to the subsequent period.

Criteria: The Organization's internal control procedures should be,structured so that accounts
are reconciled and reviewed on a timely basis and a review Is completed prior to closing the
financial records for the year.

Cause: The Organization's Director of Finance did not regard the proper cut off of the direct
fuel assistance payments and reimbursement revenue to be important. Both the accounting
staff and the staff within the fuel assistance department appears to maintain good controls and
good records, however, the Director of Finance did not understand the importance of using the
information available to post an entry to ensure correct cut off of revenue and expenses.

Effect: A significant adjusting journal entry was proposed by the auditor to ensure accurate
revenue and expense cut off for the period under audit.

Recommendations: The auditors recommend that the financial closing process include a
review of all significant balance sheet and profit and loss accounts.

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS ■ MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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Phone (603) 225-3295

(800) 856-5525
Fax (603) 228-1898
Web www.bm-cap.org

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN

.©
o -s"(

'W.'f.
S'l

BELKNA.P-MERJUMACK COUNTIES, INC.
EMPOWERING COMMUNITIES SINCE tSES

2 Industrial Park Drive
P.O. Box 1016

Concord, NH

03302-1016

Finding: 2020-001

Plan: Accounts will be reconciled and reviewed on a timely basis and completed prior to the annual close of the
financial records.

The Staff Accountant or other 'accounting staff member recdnciles all monthly bank statements which are then
approved by the Fiscal Oifflcer. The'Staff Accountant prepares an adjusUng entry for interest, service charges and
other adjustmerits which are also approved by the Fiscal Officer.

The Staff Accountant or other accounting staff member reconciles all project balance sheet accounts monthly
which are then approved by Fiscal Officer. The Staff Accountant or other accounting staff member print necessary
schedules to reconcile the accouhts & check balance totals. Any reconciling items are, brought to the attention of
the Fiscal Officer who coirects them at the Bank or approves the adjusting journal entry.

The Organization will ensure the policies are followed as written.

Contact:

Rossana Goding, Fiscal Officer
2 Industrial Park Drive Concord NH 03303 (603)
225-3295x 1131

Jeanne Agri. Chief :^ecutive Officer
2 Industrial Park Drive Concord, NH 03303 (603)
225-3295x1113

Anticipated completion date: February 28, 2021
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RFLKNAP-MERRIIVIACK COUNTIES. INC.

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2020

MATERIAL WEAKNESS

2019-001

Condition: The financial statements presented to the auditor at the beginning of fieldwork
understated net income by a material amount. This was primarily the result of improper cut
off due to revenue related to the fiscal year under audit being recorded to the subsequent
period.

Recommendations: The auditors recommend that the Organization implement procedures
so that balance sheet accounts are reconciled and reviewed by management on a monthly
basis. Further, the auditors recommend that the financial closing process be simplified and
include a review of all significant balance sheet and profit and loss accounts.

Current Status: The balance sheet accounts did show evidence of monthly reconciliations.
However, the financial closing process was not complete and the required entry to adjust
fuel assistance revenue and expense was not made. See 2020-001.

30



DocuSign Envelope ID: B664BCF7-91C9-4BD9-A135-O3DB1900OC38

State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secrc!ar\' of Slate of the Slate of New Hampshire, do hereby ccrtil>' that COMMUNITY ACTION

PROGRAM BliLKNAP AND MFRRIMACK COUNTIES, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprotlt Corporation registered

to transact business in New Hampshire on May 28, 1965. 1 further certify thai all fees and documents required by the Secretary of

State's ofllce have been received and is in good standing as far as this ofllce is concerned.

Business ID; 63021

Cctlificaie Number: 0005338239

u.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hcrcio set my hand and cause lo be aflixed

the Seal of the State ofNew Hampshire,

ihis 2nd day of April A.D. 2021.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of Slate
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Phone (603) 225-3295
(800) 856-5525
Fox (603) 228-1898
Web www.bm-cap.org
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BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.
EMPOWERING COMMUNITIES SINCE IflOS

2 Industrial Park Drive

P.O. Box 1016

Concord, NH

03302-1016

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1, Dennis Martino. President. Board of Directors, hereby certify that;

1. 1 am a duly elected officer of Community Action Prooram Belknao-Merrlmack Counties. Inc.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors, duly called
and held on January 14, 2021, at which a quorum of the Directors were present and voting.

VOTED: That Jeanne Agri, Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director, Michael Tabory,
Chief Operations Officer/Deputy Director, Rossana Coding, Chief Fiscal Officer, Steven
Gregoire, Budget Analyst, Dennis Martino, President, Board of Directors are duly authorized
on behalf of Community Action Program Belknao-Merrimack Counties. Inc. to enter into contracts

or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and
further is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and
any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable
or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and

effect as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached.

Such authority to be in force and effect until September 30. 2024. I further certify that it is
understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the

person{s) listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full
authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any
listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such

limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: 5/27/2021 Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Dennis Martino

Title: President, Board of Directors

Rev. 11/12A2020
klh;COA - dannis martino
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ACORC? CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DOrrrYY)

04/02/2021

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS .
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
EiELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certlflcate holder in lieu of such endor8ement(s).

PRODUCER

FIAI/Cross Insurance

1100 Elm Street

Manchester NH 03101

CONTACT Andrea Nicklin

rArN^nF.,,- (603)669-3218 (603)645-4331

Ai^ESS- 3oicklin(gcrossagency.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC*

INSURERA Tokio Marine Holdings, Inc.

INSURED

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrlmack Counties Inc.

P. 0. Box 1016

Concord NH 03302

INSURERS Granite State Health Care and Human Services Self-

INSURERC Federal Ins Co ■ 20281

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 20-21 All, 21-22 D&O/WC REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REOUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
POLICY EFF

(MM/DO/YYYY)
TOUT
INSO

SD51T
VWDTYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EXP
(MM/DO/YYYY) LIMITS

INSfl
LTR

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MAOE X OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO RENTEP
PREMISES (Ea occufrenee)

MEO EXP (Any one pftfson)

PHPK2187440 10/01/2020 10/01/2021
PERSONAL & AOV INJURY

GENT. AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

PRO-
JECTX POLICY LOC

OTHER:

GENERALAGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG

1,000,000

100.000

5,000

1,000,000

3,000.000

3,000.000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANYAUTOX

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea acdOftnt)

1,000.000

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

OWNED

AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED

AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS ONLY

PHPK2187429 10/01/2020 10/01/2021 BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per eccklem)

X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DEO

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MAOE

EACH OCCURRENCE
5,000,000

PHU8740340 10/01/2020 10/01/2021
AGGREGATE

5.000,000

X RETENTIONS 10.000
WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
Kyes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

STATUTE
OTH
ER

HCHS20210000395 (3a.) NH 02/01/2021 02/01/2022
e.L. EACH ACCIDENT

1.000,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE
1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT
1,000,000

Directors & Officers Liability
82471794 04/01/2021 04/01/2022

Limit

Deductibie

51.000,000

$5,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached Kmora apace Is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of New Hampshire; Department of

Health & Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are reglistered marks of ACORD
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Phone (603) 225-3295
(800) 856-5525
Fax (603) 228-1898
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BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.
EMPOWERING COMMUNITIES SINCE I96S

2 Industrial Park Drive

P.O. Box 1016

Concord, NH

03302-1016

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM

BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

The purpose the corporation includes providing assistance for the reduction of

poverty, the revitalization of low-income communities, and the empowerment of

low-income families and individuals to become fully self-sufficient through

planning and coordinating the use of a broad range of federal, slate, local, and other

assistance (including private resources) related to the elimination of poverty; the

organization of a range of services related to the needs of low-income families and

individuals, so that these services may have a measurable and potentially major

impact on the causes of poverty and may help the families and individuals to

achieve self-sufficiency; the maximum participation of residents of the low-income

communities and members of the groups served to empower such residents and

members to respond to the unique problems and needs within their communities;

and to secure a more active role in the provision of services for private, religious,

charitable, and neighborhood-based organizations, individual citizens, and

business, labor, and professional groups, who are able to influence the quantity and

quality of opportunities and services for the poor.

(Approved by Agency Board of Directors on 02/24/05
as part of the Agency Bylaws.)

CAPBMCI Statement ofPiiqwse
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/ cW \ Effective April 2021

lIltMAr-MtUU.MACK COUKTIU.tNC.

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM

BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Dennis Martino, President Kathy Goode

Sara A. Lewko

Robert (Bob) Krieger, Vice President
r

Safiya Wazir, Treasurer Chris Pyles, Esq.

A. Bruce Carri, Secretary/Clerk David Siff, Esq.

Heather Brown

Ben Wilson, AAMS® Financial Advisor

Theresa M. Cromwell

David Croft. Sheriff

Current fiscal year (3/1/21-2/28/22) board meetings-3/11/21, 5/13/21, 9/9/21, 11/18/21, 1/13/22
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SUSAN M.WNUK

Expkhienck

1992 to Community action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
Present Director, Community Health and Nutrition Services

■ Responsible for overall management of the WIC, Breastfeeding Peer Counseling
Program, Title X Family Planning, Teen Clinic, HIV and Hepatitis C testing in
correctional facilities and serves as the Statewide Administrator for Senior Farmers

Market Nutrition Program and Commodity Supplemental Food Program,
■ Oversee planning, development, implementation and coordination of all program

services and personnel for multiple programs and clinic locations
■  Fiscal management including budget preparation, monitoring, fundraising, and reports
■ Responsible for hiring, personnel management
■ Oversee special grant projects including Oral Health initiatives and statewide

coordination of WIC Lead Screening.
■ Development and implementation of policies and procedures
■ Oversee quality improvements plans for all program services
■ Responsible for grant management and report preparation
■ Represents agency on local Boards of Directors, Coalitions, and Partnership

1991-1992 Director, Family Planning, Prenatal, STD Clinics and HIV Counseling and Testing Services
■  Initiated development and implementation of comprehensive Prenatal program clinical

ser\'ices in Belknap County for low-income women
B  Integrated all program services to provide access to comprehensive care

1989-1992 Director, Family Planning, STD Clinics and HIV counseling and Testing Services
B Coordinated development of STD Clinic Services in three County area including

obtaining initial grant funding
B  Fiscal, personnel, program management of all services

1987-1989 Director, Family Planning and HIV Counseling and Testing Services
B Obtained grant funding to initiate development of HIV Counseling and Testing

Services

B  Integrated ser\'ices into Family Planning Clinic

1986-1987 Family Planning Program Director
B  Responsible for the overall fiscal, programmatic and personnel management of a Title

X funded Family planning program in a tliree County area.
B  Initiated program development activities and expansion of ser\'ices

1980-1985 Concord Hospital, Concord New Hampshire-
Social Worker - Social Ser\'ices Department

B  Evaluation of emotional, social and economic stresses of illness.
B Developed patient care plans including financial assessment, discharge planning needs,

home supports, and transfer for patients in malemity/newbom nursery, ICU,
nephrology/dialysis, and urology units.

B Liaison between medical staff, patient, families and community agencies.
B Coordinated adoptions with public and private organizations.
B  Provided assessments for guardianships hearings.
B  Initiated protective ser\'ice referrals for infants, children and seniors.
B Coordinated transfers to skilled, intermediate level nursing homes, group homes, and

facilities providing traumatic head injury and spinal cord care.
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SUSAN M.WNUK Page 2

Education

1977 Massachusetts College of Liberal Arts
North Adams, MA
Bachelor of Arts Degree Majors: History and Socioloi

Profkssional Associations

Board of Directors and Committees

■  National WIG Association

Board of Directors 2013- present
■  Chair - Local Agency Section representing 7 USDA defined Regions - 20.16-17
■  Northeast Region Local Agency Representative - 2013- present
■  NH Representative to Local Agency Section - 2010-present
•  NWA/USDA Food and Nutrition Ser\'ices - Verification of Certification Task Force — Local

Agency Representative - 2015-16
■  NWA Chair of Recruitment and Retention of RD's in WIC Task Force - 32018 to present

■  National Commodity Supplemental Food Program Association
President Board of Directors 2011

Vice President Board of Directors 2010

■ Marketing Committee- Chair 2012-2014
■  Board of Directors Local Agency Representative 1999-2000

■  New Hampshire WIC Directors Association - 1992-Present
Chairperson 2010-present
Secretary 2000-2008

a  NH Hunger Solutions Coalition 2011-present
NH Roadmap to End Childhood Hunger

a  Health First Family Care Center - Board of Directors - January 2009-presenl
a  Partnership for Public Health - Board of Directors - 2005-2015
a  Winnipesaukee Public Health Council - Executive Committee - 2014 to present Co-Chair 2020 -

present

a  Capital Area Public Health Network - Public Health Advisory Council Executive Committee 2014-
present

a  Upper Valley Hunger Council - 2015 to present,
a  Public Health Council of the Upper Valley- 2014 to present

■ HEAL and Oral Health Committees - 2016 to present
a  Central New Hampshire Health Care Partnership - Founding member 2008-present
a  HEAL- Statewide Practice Committee - 2009-2012

Lakes Region HEAL - 2009-present
CCNTR HEAL-2009^2012

a  Bi-State Primary Care Association - Operations and Government Relations Committee 2004-2019
a  Whole Village Family Resource Center - Board ofDirectors 1995-2000

Chair Personnel Committee 1996-2000

a  Capital Area Wellness Coalition - 2010-present
Healthy Foods Subcommittee

Government Task Forces and Legislative Committees
a  Legislative Task Force on Perinatal Substance Abuse - 1993-2002
a  Legislative Study Committee on Premature Births - 1991
a  Attorney General's Task Force on Child Abuse and Neglect - 1990-1993
a  National Family Planning and Reproductive Health Association - 1986-Present

Community & Volunteer

■  Bow School District Wellness Committee - 2004-present

■  Bow POPS (Parents of Performing Arts Students) 2005-2010 - Vice President 2009-2010
°  Boys Indoor Soccer Team - Coach - 2008-2010
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James Riley

Profile

Highly motivated, skilled employee with experience working across varied settings and vocations.
Consistently meets objectives in an organized and timely manner. Assumes initiative and can work well
independently but also takes direction and constructive fcetlback well. Exudes robust leadership and
interpersonal skills coupled with critical thinking and problem-solving abilities. Collaborates very well with
others and has a strong histor)* of teaming with colleagues. Strong attention to detail and esthetic when
completing projects.

Education

The International Butler Academy, Zeist, Netherlands
Professional Butling and Household Management Certification, 2009

Southern New Hampshire University, Manchester, NH
Coursework in Business Administration

Concentration in Organizational Leadership, 2009

Colby-Sawyer College, New Lx)ndon, NH
Coursework in Nursing, 2007-2008

Concord High School, Concord, NH
I-ligh School Diploma, 2007

Professional Experience
September 2019- Current Commodity Supplemental Food Program - Warehouse Manager
CoMMnnify Action ProffYi/n o/fie/kmip andMeniwdck Counties, Concord, NH
•  Direct Supervisor for Warehouse Assistant
•  Daily production of preparing and packing of USDA food boxes
•  Manages and trains all volunteers to help with production of commodity foods
•  Utilizes forklift and Pallet-Jack
•  Driving of large box truck to deliver commodity foods to elderly
•  Oversees safety and cleanliness of warehouse
•  Possesses DOT medical card to drive agency trucks

May 2019-September 2019 Front of House Manager
l-jtke's lobster, Portland, jMlz

•  Managed and trained all staff, which included scheduling, hiring, firing, and staff retention duties
•  Proficient in POS systems, produced daily specials, and intensive cash handling
•  Planned and catered private functions with superior customer ser\'ice
•  Performed clerical duties as needed

February 2014-December 2018 Assistant General Manager
Cheers Restaurant Par Grille, Concord, NH

•  Supervised all staff with duties that included both the hiring and termination processes
•  Management responsibilities included payroll, cash flow, staff scheduling, and planning daily specials
•  Skilled in organizing and executing private functions with a strong focus on customer serv'ice
•  Administrative and serving dudes as requited
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June 2016-Scptcmbcr 2016 Manager
1-J4f)e's 55 AuthenticMexicau, Hampton Reach, i\H
•  Organized and oversaw daily business Rinctionaiit)' from open to close
•  Directed personnel, delegated staff breaks, and handled customer service inquiries
•  Maintained the production of high volumes of fresh produce for menu consistency
•  Assisted in planning and participation of events such as the local seafood festival

September 2015-June 2016 Assistant General Manager
900 Degrees Neapo/itan Pii^s^ria, Manchester, NH

•  Charged with ordering/par sheets, calculating pricing and managing the budget
•  Participated in fundraising initiatives as well as public and community outreach
•  Engaged in superior customer service
•  Managed and trained all staff, which included scheduling, hiring, firing, and staff retention duties

November 2007-June 2014 Educational Assistant
Coihvrd School District, Concord, NH

•  Provided instruction in a one-to-one setting and implemented discrete trial instaicdon (DTI)
• Worked with students with behavioral or developmental diagnoses such as autism spectrum disorder
' (ASD)

•  Assisted in general classroom reaching

References:

Provided Upon Request
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Department of Health and Human Services

Communit)' Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

Commodity' Supplemental Foods Program (CSFP) and
Senior Farmers Market Nutrition Program (SFMNP)

July 1,2021 -June 30, 2022

KEY PERSONNEL

Name Job Title Salary
% Paid

from this

Contract

Amount Paid

from this

Contract

Susan M. Wnuk

Director, Community Health &
Nutrition Services $66,866.00 12% $8,023.92

James Riley Warehouse Manager $42,900.00 100% $42,900.00



Kcrrin A. Round)

Accing Commissioner

LisB M. Morris '

Director
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HDMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SER VICES

29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271 ̂ SOI 1-«00-8S2-334Sext450l

Fax:603-271-4827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.dhhs.nh.gov

January 2, 2020

His. Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Councii

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Public Health
Services, to amend an existing agreement with Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack
Counties, Inc. (Vendor #177203-6003), 2 Industrial Park Drive, Concord. NH 03302. for the
provisions of a Commodity Supplemental Food Program and a Senior Farmers Market Nutrition
Program, statewide, by decreasing the price limitation by $28,514 from $1,509,903 to $1,481,389,
with no change to the contract completion date of September 30. 2021, effective upon Governor
and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by the Governor and Executive Council on June 21,
2017 (item #49), as amended on May 2, 2018 (item #56) and as amended on March 13. 2019
.(item #14).

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021, and
are anticipated to:be available in State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust encumbrances
between state fiscal years within the price limitation through the Budget Office, if needed and
justified.

05-95-90-902010-52600000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SERVICES, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION
HEALTH AND COMMUNITY SERVICES, WIC SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2018

102-500734
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90006007 $315,000 $0 $315,000

102-500734
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90006024 $1,400 $0 $1,400

520-500361
FMNP Food

Costs
90006025 $0 $0 $0

2019 102-500734
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90076007 $262,475 $0 $262,475
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102-500734
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90006024 $8,400 $0 $8,400

520-500361
FMNP Food

Costs
90006025 $77,065 $0 $77,065

2020

102-500734
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90006007 $262,475 ($12,673) $249,802

102-500734
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90006024 $8,400 $0 $8,400

520-500734
FMNP Food

Costs
90006025 $77,065 $0 $77,065

2021

102-500734
Contracts for

Program Svc
90006007 $262,475 ($12,673) $249,802

102-500734
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90006024 $8,400 $0 $8,400

520-500361
FMNP Food

Costs
90006025 $77,065 $0 $77,065

2022

102-500734
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90006007 $65,618 ($3,168) $62,450

102-500734
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90006024 $7,000 $0 $7,000

520-500364
FMNP Food

Costs
90006025 $77,065 $0 $77,065

TOTALS $1,509,903 ($28,514) $1,481,389

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to reduce the funding for the Commodity Supplemental
Food Program due to a state award reduction in federal funding and a decrease in the number of
individuals enrolled in the program. Additionally, scope of service requirements are being updated
to ensure compliance with 7 CFR 247 and 7 CFR 250 as the result of a recent federal review of
the Commodity Supplemental Foods Program by the United States Department of Agriculture,
Food and Nutrition Services.

Services in this agreement continue to include a statewide Commodity Supplemental
Foods Program and a statewide Senior Farmers Market Nutrition Program available to eligible
clients. The programs assist with improving the health of low-income elderly persons who are
si)rty (60) years of age and older by supplementing their diets with nutritious foods year-round and
fresh fruits and vegetables during the summer months.

Approximately 3,600 individuals will be served annually through September 30. 2021,
which is a decrease from 4,000 annually. ,

The Department will monitor the Contractor using the following performance measures;

•  The Contractor will provide supplemental foods to a minimum of ninety-five
percent (95%) of the assigned Commodity Supplemental Foods Program
caseload in Federal Fiscal Years (FFYs) 2020 and 2021.
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•  The Contractor will provide farm fresh bundles to a minimum of ninety-five
percent (95%) of the assigned Commodity Supplemental Foods Program
caseload In FFYs 2020 and 2021.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1 Revisions to General Provisions of the original contract, the
parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to four (4) additional years, contingent on
Governor and Executive Council approval. The Department is not exercising its option to renew
at this time.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, the Department may
have to terminate the Commodity Supplemental Food Program early due to the decrease in
available federal funding. Terminating the program early may have adverse effects on the health
of low-income elderly persons, sixty (60) years of age and older, as they will no longer have
access to nutritional foods that supplement their diets year-round. Additionally, the Department
will continue to be out of compliance with federal regulations cited in 7 CFR 247 and 7 CFR 250,
if citations to the regulations are not updated in the contract document.

Area Served: Statewide

Sources of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the US Department of Agriculture, Food
and Nutrition Service. Commodity Supplemental Food Program, Catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance (CFDA) #10.565, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) 204NH814Y8005, and
from the US Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Service, Senior Farmers Market
Nutrition Program. CFDA #10.576. FAIN 194NH083Y8314 and FAIN 194NH083Y8313.

In the event the Federal Funds become no longer available. General funds will not t>e
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Kerrin A. Rounds

Acting Commissioner

The OcporlniaU of Health and /Yimion Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Commodity Supplementai Foods Program and Senior Farmers Market
Nutrition Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3 to the Commodity Supplemental Foods Program and
. Senior Farmers Market Nutrition Program Contract

This 3"" Amendment to the Commodity Supplemental Foods Program and Senior Farmers Market Nutrition
Program contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #3") is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or
"Department") and Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. (hereinafter referred to
as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 2 Industrial Park Drive, Concord,
NH 03302.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 21, 2017 (Item #49), as amended on May 2. 2018 (Item #5B), and on March 13. 2019 (Item 14).
and the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in
the Contract as amended and In consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules or terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18. the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these
sen/ices; and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this
Amendment #3 remain in full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,481,389.

2. Delete Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in Its entirety and replace with Exhibit A - Amendment #3„ Scope
of Services.

3. Exhibit 8, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1. to read:

1. This contract is funded with Federal Funds from the US Department of Agriculture, Food and
Nutrition Service, Commodity Supplemental Food Program. Catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance (CFDA) #10.565, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) 204NH814Y8005 and
from the US Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Service. Senior Farmers Market
Nutrition Program. CFDA #10.576, FAIN 194NH083Y8314 and FAIN 194NH083Y8313.

4. Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3, to read:

3. Payment for expenses shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures in
accordance.with the approved budget line items in Exhibits:

3.1. B-1 Budget;

3.2. 8-2 Budget-Amendment#2;

3.3.. B-3 Budget - Amendment #3;

3.4. B-4 Budget - Amendment #3;

3.5. 8-5 Budget - Amendment #3;

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Amendment Contractor Initials
Counties, Inc.

RFP.2018-DPHS-12.COMMO-01-A03 Page 1 of 4 Date (3'



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Commodity Supplemental Foods Program and Senior Farmers Market
Nutrition Program

3.6. B-6 Budget;

3.7. B-7 Budget;

3.6. B-8 Budget;

3.9. B-9 Budget; and

3.10.8-10 Budget.

5. Delete Exhibit B-3 Budget, Amendment #2 and replace with Exhibit B-3 Budget, Amendment #3,
Commodity Supplemental Food Program.

6. Delete Exhibit B-4 Budget. Amendment #2 and replace with Exhibit B-4 Budget, Amendment #3,
Commodity Supplemental Food Program.

7. Delete Exhibit B-5 Budget, Amendment #2 and replace with Exhibit B-5 Budget, Amendment #3,
Commodity Supplemental Food Program.

8. Delete Exhibit C-1 Revisions to General Provisions. Section 2. in its entirety and replace with the
following;

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this Contract, Termination, is amended by adding
the following language:

10.1 The State may terminate the Contract immediately if the Contractor is not in compliance
with the provisions and scope of services in the Contract.

10.2 The State may terminate the Contract at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, thirty (30) days after providing the Contractor written notice that the State is
exercising its option to terminate the Contract.

10.3 The Contractor may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole
. discretion of the Contractor, one hundred eighty (180) days after providing the State Written
notice-that the Contractor is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.

10.4 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Contract, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving sen/ices under the Contract and establishes a process to.meet those needs.

10.5 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Contract and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State
as requested.

10.6 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Contract are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
Including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor sha.ll provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.7 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

Community Action Program BelKnap-Merrimack Amendment #3 Contracior Initials
Counties. Inc. lO i1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Commodity Supplemental Foods Program and Senior Farmers Market
Nutrition Program

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parlies have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

1^0
-Date Li^ Morris

Director

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack
Counties, Inc.

Tit

Km LgJ:yn^
Teanne Agri ( \
F.xpciitive ITirprfor Vx

12/13/2019 l/X A\J(V^ V V (/X\Ky
Date

Executive Director

Acknowledgerrient of Contractor's signature;

State of New Hampshire . County of Merrimack on 12/13/2019 before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated above.

I/.

• Signature'^^f Notary Public or Justice oflFig"Peace
«

- Kathy'L. Howard, Notary Public

Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

KATHV L HOWARD Noti^ PUtdo, NM
My Commission Expires: MvCofftfnMon&tfrtaOotoetf ir.aoa

Community Action Program Beiknap-Menimack . Amendment #3
Counties. Inc.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Commodity Supplemental Foods Program and Senior Farmers Market
Nutrition Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

I

Date fA/e ftrjos

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Amendment #3
Counties.-Inc.

RFP.2018-DPHS-12.COMMO-01-A03 Page 4 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Commodity Supplemental Foods Program and Senior Farmers Mart(et
Nutrition Program

Exhibit A - Amendment #3

Scope of Services

1. PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO ALL SERVICES

1.1 The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire
General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.2 The Contractor shall pursue any and all appropriate public sources of funds that are
applicable to the funding of the Services, operations prevention, acquisition, or
rehabilitation. Appropriate records shall be maintained by the Contractor to document
actual funds received or denials of funding from such public sources of funds.

1.3 The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance service
they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful access
to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective date.

2. STATEMENT OF WORK

2.1 The Contractor shall provide statewide public health nutrition services through the
administration of the Commodity Supplemental Food Program (CSFP) and the Senior
Farmers' Market Nutrition Program (SFMNP), with a targeted focus on counties with a
greater numiDer of at-risk elderly individuals, while meeting the nutritional needs of at
least 95% of the assigned caseload. The Contractor shall certify;

2.1.1 Participants are informed of their rights and responsibilities at the time of
certification in the CSFP and SFMNP.

2.1.2 Participants are provided fair hearing procedures, for persons who file statements
claiming inappropriate adverse action.

2.1.3 The special needs of the homet>ound elderly are met by utilizing proxies and
volunteers.

2.2 The Contractor shall provide the certification in 2.1, food delivery and food storage, as
appropriate and in accordance with the Code of Federal Regulations 7 CFR 247 and 7
CFR 250, which includes, but Is not limited to:

2.2.1 Storing and distributing commodities.

2.2.2 Compliance yvith civil rights requirements.

2.2.3 Maintaining accurate and complete records.

2.2.4 Conducting program outreach.

2.2.5 Determining eligibility of applicants in accordance witt) eligibility criteria
established by the Department.

2.2.6 Compliance with fiscal and operational requirements established by the
Department.

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Exhibit A - Amendment #3 Contractor Initials: Cjft
Counties. Inc. n \ a
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Commodity Supplemental Foods Program and Senior Farmers Market
Nutrition Program

Exhibit A - Amendment #3

2.3 The Contractor shall determine program eligibility for the CSFP and SFMNP elderly
applicants who are at or below 130% of the federal poverty level in accordance with the
annual United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) CSFP and SFMNP Income
Guidelines.

2.4 The Contractor shall maintain participant certification master files at a central location
that is accessible for audit and review for a minimum of three (3) years.

2.5 The Contractor shall work with the Department to produce required program resources
to administer the CSFP and SFMNP In accordance with 7 CFR 247 and 7 CFR 250 and
in a culturally and linguistically appropriate manner, which includes, but is not limited to:

2.5.1 Participant rights and rules information.

2.5.2 Training and educational materials.

2.5.3 Appropriate printed materials, flyers and handouts for program participants.

2.5.4 On-site management evaluations.

2.6 The Contractor shall comply with all USDA Food and Nutrition Services (FNS)
regulations, policies, instructions and state policies and procedures for the CSFP and
SFMNP.

2.7 The Contractor shall adjust the provision of services, as necessary, to ensure
compliance with changes in the federal regulations governing the CSFP and SFMNP
that may occur with the contract period.

2.8 The Contractor shall allow the Department of Health and Human Services, the
Comptroller General, Office of Inspector General, the Department of Agriculture, or any
of its duly authorized representatives, to conduct on-site reviews to determine
compliance with Section 6, Compliance, ensuring access to information that includes,
but is not limited to:

2.8.1 Program operations.

'2.8.2 Financial operations.

2.8.3 Storage facility.

2.9 The Contractor shall work with the Department to write policies and implement
procedures to prevent and detect dual participation within the CSFP and SFMNP. The
Contractor shall pursue claims against participants or farmers, as necessary or required.

2.10 The Contractor shall maintain an adequate accounting and record keeping system to
ensure a distinct audit trail, which includes, but not limited to:

2.10.1 Accounting ledgers;

2.10.2 Copies of all subcontracts;

2.10.3 Payments;

2.10.4 Participation rates; and

2.10.5 Invoices and correspondence.

Community Action Program Beiknap-Memmack Exhibit A - Amendment #3 Contractor Initials^ft
Counties. Inc. in i'2v iCS
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Commodity Supplemental Foods Program and Senior Farmers Market
Nutrition Program

Exhibit A - Amendment #3

2.11 The Contractor shall provide financial and aggregate program data that contains no
personally identifiable Information (Pll) to the Department on a monthly basis, and as
requested which includes, but is not limited to;

2.11.1 Yearly race and ethnicity reporting;

2.11.2 Monthly participation count by service area;

2.11.3 Monthly warehouse physical inventory count;

2.12 The Contractor shall obtain prior approval from the Department before allowing
participation to exceed the caseload assigned by the Department for CSFP and SFMNP.

2.13 The Contractor shall comply with USDA Office of Civil Rights policies, including, but not
limited to:

2.13.1 Inserting the non-discrimination statement on all outreach and program materials.

2.13.2 Ensuring all staff and volunteers not discriminate participants based on race, color,
national origin, age, sex or disability.

2.14 The Contractor shall comply with all Federal, State, or local requirements relative to food
safety and health, including required health inspections and procedures for responding
to a fpod recall.

2.15 The Contractor shall provide participants current nutritional information and materials
regarding the availability of other nutrition, health and social 'service assistance
programs in the individual's service area, which includes, but is not limited to information
regarding::

2.15.1 Supplemental security income benefits available through Title XVI of the Social
Security Act;

2.15.2 Medical assistance available through Title XIX of the Social Security Act. Including
medical assistance provided to Medicare beneficiaries; and

2.15.3 The supplemental nutrition assistance program available to all elderly applicants,
as appropriate.

2.16 The Contractor shall coordinate referrals and enrollment initiatives with other
organizations such as the NH Senior Center Network and Faith-based Services
vyarehouse and Distribution Requirements.

2.17 The Contractor shall provide warehouse facilities for receiving, storing and distributing
USDA commodities for CSFP and fresh fruit and vegetable bundles for SFMNP in
compliance with state and federal regulations. The Contractor shall:

2.17.1 Store donated foods ensuring foods are distinguished from one another.

2.17.2 Ensure recordkeeping of inventory and separate recordkeeping of donated foods.

2.17.3 Receive food commodities for distribution.

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Exhibit A - Amendment #3 Contractor Initials:
Counties, Inc.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Commodity Supplemental Foods Program and Senior Farmers Market
Nutrition Program

Exhibit A - Amendment #3

2.17.4 Account for any loss resulting from improper distribution, or improper storage, care
or handling of commodities.

2.17.5 Perform required monthly CSFP caseload and commodity inventory reporting.

2.17.6 Ship commodities, fresh fruit and vegetable bundles to the certification/distribution
sites based on packing dates, ensuring that the oldest commodities and produce
are distributed first.

2.17.7 Provide appropriate refrigeration for up to five (5) days for fresh bulk produce.

2.17.6 Order and maintain appropriate levels of inventory, virhich includes, but is not
limited to maintaining and safeguarding USDA foods during handling, storage and
distribution per 7 CFR 250.14(b).

2.17.9, Distribute USDA Foods in accordance with the approved food package guide rate.

' 2.17.10 Distribute donated foods to eligible recipient agencies in a timely manner, in
optimal condition and in amounts for which the recipient agencies are eligible.

2:18 The Contractor shall work with the NH Department of Agriculture to recruit, authorize,
and train farmers to provide bulk purchase of authorized produce for the SFMNP. The
Contractor shall:

2.18.1 Coordinate with farmers for the delivery of the bulk purchased bundles of produce
to CSFP clinic sites statewide.

2.18.2 Development, distribute and collect farmer applications and agreements.

2.18.3 Provide annual farmer orientation and training for the SFMNP.

2.18.4 Develop and distribute nutrition education services and print materials for all
participants of the SFMNP.

3. PERFORMANCE MEASURES

3.1 A minimum of ninety-five percent (95%) of the assigned CSFP caseload receive services
to supplement their diets with nutritious foods year round.

3.2 A minimum of ninety-five percent (95%) of active CSFP participants with SFMNP receive
fresh fruits and vegetables in the summer months.

4. REPORTING AND DELIVERABLES

4.1 The Contractor shall provide the names and addresses of all CSFP certification,
distribution and storage sites under the jurisdiction of the local agency to the Department
annually in October each year of the contract period.

4.2 The Contractor shall provide the financial and aggregate program data in 2.11 to the
Department on a monthly basis and upon request.

4.3 The Contractor shall provide CSFP caseload and commodity inventory reports to the
Department no later than the fifth (5*^) of each month.

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Exhibit A - Amendment ,#3 Contractor Initials:
Counties. Inc. lO I'i \0
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Nutrition Program

Exhibit A - Amendment #3

4.4 The Contractor shall provide CSFP and SFMNP race and ethnicity reporting to the
Department upon request.

4.5 The Contractor shall submit an Annual CSFP and SFMNP Report to the Department no
later than September 30th each year of the contract period.

5. COMPLIANCE

5.1 The Contractor hereby agrees that it will comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of
1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq.). Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (20
U.S.C. 1681 et seq.), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 794), Age
Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. 6101 et seq.); Title II and Title III of the Americans
with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990 as amended by the ADA Amendment Act of 2008 (42
U.S.C. 12131-12189) as implemented by Department of Justice regulations at (28 CFR
Parts 35 and 36); Executive Order 13166. "Improving Access to Services for Persons
with Limited English Proficiency." (August 11, 2000), all provisions required by the
implementing regulations of the U.S. Department of Agriculture (7 CFR Part 15 et seq);
and FNS directives and guidelines to the effect that no person shall, on the ground of
race, color, national origin, age. sex, or disability, be excluded from participation in, be
denied the benefits of, or othenivise be subjected to discrimination :under any program
or activity for which the Contractor receives Federal financial assistance from FNS; and
hereby gives assurance that it will immediately take measures necessary to effectuate
this agreement.

5.2 By providing this assurance, the Contractor agrees to compile data, maintain records
and submit records and reports as required to permit effective enforcement of the
nondiscrimination laws, and to permit Department personnel during normal working
hours to review and copy such records, books and accounts, access such facilities, and
Interview such personnel as needed to ascertain compliance with the non-discrimination
laws. If there are any violations of this assurance, the Department of Agriculture shall
have the right to seek judicial enforcement of this assurance.

5.3 This assurance is given in consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all
Federal financial assistance, grants, and loans of Federal funds, reimbursable
expenditures, grant, or donation of Federal property and interest in property, the detail
of Federal personnel, the sale and lease of, and the permission to use Federal property
or interest in such property or the furnishing of services without consideration or at a
nominal consideration, or at a consideration that is reduced for the purpose of assisting
the recipient, or in recognition of the public interest to be served by such sale, lease, or
furnishing of services to the recipient, or any improvements made with Federal financial
assistance extended to the Program-applicant by USDA. This includes any Federal
agreement, arrangement, or other contract that has as one of its purposes the provision
of cash assistance for the purchase of food, and cash assistance for purchase or rental
of food sen/ice equipment or any other financial assistance extended in reliance on the
representations and agreements made in this assurance.

Community Action Program Belknap-Menimack Exhibit A - Amendrhent #3 Contractor Initials;
Counties, Inc. \ 1 t d

RFP.2018-DPHS-12-COMMO-01-A03 Page5of5 Date; 1 '
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JcfTrrjrA.Meyen
Comtnbtioncr

Uu M. Morris

Olrector

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SFR VICES

29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301

603-27l'4S0l 1-600^20345 Ext. 4501

Fax: M3-271-4827 TDD Access: I-60O-735-2964

www.dfahi.nh.gov

February 6, 2019

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable CoLincll

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services, to
amend an existing contract with Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (Vendor
#177203-8003), 2 Industrial Park Drive; Concord. NH 03302, for the provisions of a Commodity
Supplemental Food Program (CSFP) and a Senior Farmers' Market Nutrition Program (SFMNP)
statewide, by decreasing the price limitation by $170,707 from $1,'680,610 to $1,509,903 with no
change in the completion date of September 30, 2021, effective upon Governor and Executive. Council
approval. 100% Federal Funds. ^

The original agreement was approved by the Governor and Executive Council on June 21,
2017, (Item #49).and amended on May 2, 2018 (Item #5B)

Funds to support this request are available in State Fiscal Years 2018 and 2019 and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2020, 2021 and 2022 upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in .future operating budgets.

05-95-90-902010-52600000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES,
HHS: DfVtSION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUNITY SERVICES.
WIC SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION PROGRAM

STATE .

FISCAL

YEAR

CLASS TITLE
ACTIVITY

CODE

Current

Modified

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)

Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2018
102-

500734

Contracts for

Program Svc
90006007 $315,000.00 $0.00 $315,000.00

2018
102-

500734

Contracts for

Program Svc
90006024 $1,400.00 $0.00 $1,400.00

2018
520-

500381

FfWlNP Food

Costs
90006025 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Subtotal $316,400.00 $0.00 $316,400.00



Hfs Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 4

STATE

FISCAL

YEAR

CLASS TITLE
ACTIVITY

CODE

Current

Modified

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)

Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2019
102-

500734

Contracts for

Program Svc
90006007 $315,000.00 ($52,525.00) $262,475.00

2019
102-

500734
Contracts for
Program Svc

90006024 $8,400.00 $0.00 $8,400.00

2019
520-

500361

FMNP Food
Costs

90006025 S77.065.00 $0.00 $77,065.00

Subtotal $400,465.00 ($52,525.00) $347,940.00

STATE

FISCAL

YEAR

CLASS TITLE
ACTIVITY

CODE

Current

Modified

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2020
102-

500734

Contracts for

Program Svc
90008007 $315,000.00 ($52,525.00) $262,475.00

2020
102-

500734

Contracts for

Program Svc
90006024 $8,400.00 $0.00 $8,400.00

2020
520-

500361

FMNP Food

Costs
90006025 $77,065.00 $0.00 $77,065.00

Subtotal $400,465.00 ($52,525.00) $347,940.00

STATE

FISCAL

YEAR

CLASS TITLE
ACTIVITY ■

CODE

Currerit
Modified

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2021-
102-

500734
Contracts for

.  Program Svc
90006007 $315,000.00 ($52,525) $262,475.00

2021
102-

500734

Contracts for

Program Svc
90006024 $8,400.00 $0.00 $8,400.00

.  2021
520-

500361

FMNP Food

Costs
90006025 $77,065.00. $0.00 .$77,065.00

Subtotal $400,465.00 ($52,525) $347,940.00

STATE

FISCAL

YEAR

CLASS TITLE
ACTIVITY

CODE

Current

Modified

Budget

Increase

(Decrease)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2022
102-

500734

Contracts for

Program Svc 90006007 $78,750.00 ($13,132) $65,618.00

2022
102-

500734

Contracts for

Program Svc 90006024 $7,000.00 $0.00 $7,000.00



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
arxj the Honorable Coundl
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2022
520-

500361

FMNPFood

Costs
90006025 $77,065.00 $0.00 $77,065.00

Subfofa/ $162,815.00 ($13,132) $U9.6e3.00

TOTAL; $1,680,610.00 ($170,707.00) $1,509,903.00

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to initiate a reduction in the Commodity Supplemental Food
Program due to a federal funding decrease. Additionally, the Senior Farmers Market Program offers
individuals the ability for to access bundles of fresh food from local farms. Currently, seniors can
receive a bundle of food worth $18.00. However, the Department is requesting the amount of fresh
food bundle values to increase by $2.00 from $18.00 to $20.00. This two-dollar increase will not require
an increase in the contract price limitation and will only affect the amount of food in each bundle that a
senior can receive.

Services in this agreement include a statewide Commodity Supplemental Foods Program and a
statewide Senior Farmers' Market Nutrition Program available to eligible clients. These programs work
to improve the health of low-income elderly persons at least sixty (60) years of age by supplementing
their diets with nutritious foods year round and fresh fruits and vegetables in the summer.

1

Approximately 4,000 Individuals will be served annually from January through December.

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall continue
after June 30, 2019, and the Department shall not be liable for any payments for services provided
after June 30, 2019, unless and until an appropriation for these services has been received from the
State Legislature and funds encumbered for the State Fiscal Years 2020-2021 and 2022-2023 biennia.

Should the Governor and Executive Council hot approve this request, low-income elderly
persons may not receive an addrtional $2.00 increase per bundle when receiving fresh fruits and
vegetables during the summer months to supplement their diets.

Area Served; Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the U.S. pepartment of Agriculture, CFDA#
10.565, FAIN# 184NH814Y8005



His Exceller*cy. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable'Council
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In the event that Federal Funds become no longer available,-General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Res^ctfully submitted.

Jearey A. Meyers
Commissioner

77ie Dtporlmtnl of HeoUh and Human Scruicti' Mission is to join communities and famiiies
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Commodity Supptemontal Foods Program and Senior Farmers Market NiitrlUon Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

Commodity Supplemental Foods Program and Senior Farmers Market Nutrition Program

This 2^ Amendment to the Commodity Supplemental Foods Program and Senior Farmers Market
Nutrition Program contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #2") dated this 2'*' day of Odober,
2018, is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services
(hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrlmack Counties, inc.. (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a non-profit corporation with a
place of business at 2 Industrial Park Drive. Concord. NH 03302.

WHEREAS, pursuanl to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 21. 2017, (Item 49). and amended on May 2. 2018 (Item 5B),*the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to (he terms and conditions of
the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuanl to Form P-37; General Provisions. Paragraph 18. and Exhibit B. Method and
Conditions of Payment, Paragraph 8, the parties may modify the payment schedule and adjust budget
line Items of the contract upon written agreement; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to adjust budget line items to reduce the price limitation due to a reduction
In federal funding, with no changes to the scope of work; and

NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Form P-37. Genera! Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,509,903.

2. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1,9. Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Nathan D. White. Director.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9631.

4. Delete and replace the following:

4.1.'Exhibit B-2, Budget with Exhibit B-2. Amendment #2. Commodity Supplemental Food Prograni.

4.2.'Exhibit 8-3, Budget with Exhibit B-3. Amendment U2, Commodity Supplemental Food Program.

4.3. Exhibit 8-4, Budget with Exhibit 8-4, Amendment #2, Commodity Supplemer^tal Food Program.

4.4. Exhibit 8^5, Budget with Exhibit B-5. Amendment #2, Commodity Supplemental Food Program.

5. Add Exhibit K, OHHS Information Security Requirements.

Community Action Progrvn Amendment 92
BetXnap-MenVnedi Cou^Ues. inc
RFP-20tS-OPHS-l2-COMMCM)l Pe^e i of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Commodity SupptementAl Foods Program and Senior Farmers Market Nutdtion Program

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Department of Health and Human Services
approval. IN WITNESS WHEREOF; the parties have set their hands as of the date written below

Date

State of New Hampshire
Departrrfent of HeSfth and Human Services

Lisa Morris

Director

Date

Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

Name; Steven E. Gregolrc
Title: Budget Analyst

on I/I8/20I9

Acknowfedgement of Contractor's signature:

State of New Hampshire County of Merrimack
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person Identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
caJ)aci^/Iindi,cated above.

before the

r.V" Signature of Nota/V Public or Justice ofthe Peace

♦ ' s, •

/ James Sudak.'.lustice of the Peace

Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires: in

Corrvnuilty >klion Proprvn
Bcftnap-Merrtmack Counll». inc
RFP-201S-DPHS-l2-COMI»tO4l

Amendmcft C

Page 2 or 31



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Commodity Supplemental Foods Program and Senior Farmers Market Nutrition Program

The precedir^ Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

3///^
Date

Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approven by the Goveribor^and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Community Adioo Program
Bolknap-MerrfmocX Counties, inc.
RP P-20t SOPHS-12-C0MM041

Amendment 82

Page 3 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. 'Breach' means the toss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information,' Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach* in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. 'Computer Security Incident' shall have the same meaning 'Computer Security
incident' in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. 'Confidential Information" or "Confidentiar^Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records. Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all informaiion owned or managed by
the State of NH • created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed In the course of performing contracted
services • of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. 'End User" means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data In accordance v^h the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. 'Incident' means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
vtrhich Includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

V5. Ltti update 10/09/18 EjtfiWl K Contractof tnlUab
OHHS infonnaiJon

Security Reqiiremenii fMiPage i of B Date.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

OHMS Information Security Requirements

mall, all of which may have the potential to put (he data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network* means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Infofmation
Technology;, or^^legate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by rheans of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFi.
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8; 'Personal Information' (or 'PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 35S-C;19, biometric records, etc..
alone, or when combined with other personal or Identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name. etc.

9. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health information" (or 'PHI') has the same meaning as provided In the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information (hat is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Prolected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indedpherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. ReSPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further. Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use. disclose, maintain pr transmit PHI In any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

V5.LUI update 10/D9ri6 Corttrectorlnlilaia
OHHS InfonnatiOA

Security Reqiiroments / ul a.
Pageloli Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it Is required by law. in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If OHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must hot disclose PHI iri violation of such' additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disdosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees OHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6v The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSIVIISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

t

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User Is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via cerHfied ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named Individual.

^  7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User Is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sul>-folders used for transrnltting Confrdential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deietion cycle (I.e. ConHdential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

III. RETENTION AND OISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative In whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must;

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected In
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for Its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply.with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. Ail servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker. anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intAJSion-delection and firewall protection.
6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the Slate's

Chief Information Offtcer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure. •

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on'its systems (or Its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written cerirficatlon for any Slate of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
.recovery operations. When no longer in use. electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and n^dia
sanitization. or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88. Rev 1. Guidelines
for Media Sanrtizatlon, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements v/ill be jointly
evaluated by the Stale and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding..

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to completely .destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping. '

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract and any
. derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information llfecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (I.e.. tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

A. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can Impact Slate of NH systems and/or
Department confidentiai information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness arvJ education for Its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an Intemal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, Including breach notification requirements.

1

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies'
and procedures, systems access fornis, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sut>contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 4$
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA. Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and Is responsible for maintaining compJiance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at Its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey Is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion vrith agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United Slates unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security, breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor rhust. comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Conridential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations <45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules <45
C.F.R. Paris 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable urtder State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that Is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htni
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guldeiines. standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
.  response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the.
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided In .Section VI. This includes a confidential Information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire networic.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or Inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only If encrvoted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such Information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from OHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, Including any
derivative files containing personalty identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and

disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

I. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or Indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsrte inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data ■

is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at (he email addresses provided .in
Section VI.

The Contraclor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handlinig and Breach Notification
procedures and In accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and prpMdures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will;

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved In Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required In this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Sreach- notification is required, and. if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated.with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer;

DHHSPriyacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer

OHHSInformationSecufityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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state OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

D1 VIS/OS OF PUBLIC HEAL TH SER VICES

Mnnj A. Meyer* » HAZE.N DRIVE, CONCORD. NH MJOl
CPBBWoBer 603-271^1 1-$0(MS2-^ EiL 4501

Far 603-271^27 TDD Acorn: I •COO-73S-2964
Un M. Merrti www.dhbknb^ov

Olmiw

March 8. 2018

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Public Health Services, to
anTend an existing contract with Community Action Program BelknapA^errfmacK Counties. IrK. (Vendor
#177203-8003). 2 industrial Park Drive. Concord, NH 03302. to add Federally-mandated Civil Rights
assurance iartguage to the original agreement for the provisions of a Commodity Supplemental Food
Program (CSFP) and a Senior Farmers' Market Nutrition Program (SFMNP) statewide, with no change
to the price limitation not to exceed $1,680,610 and no change to the end date of September 30. 2021,
effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval. The original agreement was approved by ̂ e
Governor and Executive Council on June 21. 2017. Item #49. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are available in State Fiscal Years 2018 and 2019 and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2020, 2021 and 2022 upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in future operating budgets.

See Attached Fiscal Detallfl

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this amendment request is to add Federally-mandated Civil Rights assurance
language to the original agreement in accordance with a Federal audit conducted on September 28.
20l7. with no change to the funding in this agreement.

Services in this agreement Include a statev^de Commodity Supplemental Foods Program and a
statewide Senior Farmers' Market Nutrition Program available to eligible clients. These programs work
to improve the health of low-Income elderly, persons at least sixty (60) years of age by supplementing
their diets with nutritious foods year round and fresh fruits and vegetables in the summer.

In accordance with FNS Instruction 113-1 Section X, State Agencies must obtain written
assurance from local agencies or other sub-recipients that receive Federal financial assistance for the
Commodity Supplemental Foods Program and (he Senior Farmer's Market Nutrition Program. The
^statement of Crvil Rights assurance must be incorporated into each State Agency and sub-recipient
agency agreements. The statement assures thai the entity to receive hnandal assistance will operate
in compliance with all nondiscrimination laws, regulations, instructions, policies and guidelines.



His ExoeOency; Govemor-Christophcf T. ̂ nunu
and the Honoratia Council >
Page 2 of 2
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The following performance measures/objectives are used to measure the effectiveness of the
agreement:

•  The percenttQf-lowHncome seniors enrolled In CSFP
•  The percent of (ow^ncome seniors reoeivihg SFMNP during summer distribution months
•  The percent of low«income seniors receiving nutrition education material highlighting the

health benefits of CSFP arwl SFMNP foods

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall continue
after June 30, 2019. and the Department shall not be liable for any payments for services provided
after June 30. 2019, unless and until an appropriation for these services has been received from the
State Legislature and funds encumbered for the State Fiscal Years 2020-2021 and 2022-2023 btiennia.

Should: the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, low-income elderly
persorts may not have access to nutritious foods or fresh fruits and vegetables to supplement their
diets because the federally funded program may not be able to continue operations.

Area Served: Statewide

Source-of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the U.S. Department of Agriculture. CFDA#
10.565. FAIN# 1WNH81.4Y8005

In the event that Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

isa moms

Dir ctor

Approved by: T \ I I
Je^^y A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Dcpanment ofHealth and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providint opportunities for citisens to achieve health end independence.



NH Department of Health & Human Services

Commodity Supptemental Foods Program and Senior Farmers Market Nutrition

Program (RPP-2018-OPHS-12-COMMO-01)

FISCAL DETAILS

05.95-80-902010-52600000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SERVICES, HNS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF POPULATION
HEALTH AND COMMUNTTY SERVICES. WIC SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION PROGRAM

STATE

FISCAL

YEAR

CLASS Trrue ,
ACTIVITY

CODE
AMOUNT

2018 102-500734 Contracts for Program Svc 80006007 $315,000.00
2018 102-500734 Contracts for Program Svc 90006024 $1,400.00
2018 520-500361 FMNP Food Costs 80006025 $0.00

Subtotal $316,400.00

STATE
FISCAL

YEAR

CLASS TITLE
ACTfVITY

CODE
AMOUNT

2019 102-500734 Contracts for Prooram Svc 90006007 $315,000.00
2019 102-500734 Contracts for Program Svc 90006024 $8,400.00
2019 520-500361 FMNP Food Costs 90006025 $77,065.00

Subtotal UOO.465.00

STATE
FISCAL

YEAR

CLASS TITLE
ACTIVITY

CODE
AMOUNT

2020 102-500734 Contracts for Program Svc 90006007 $315,000.00
2020 102-500734 Contracts for Program Svc 90006024 $8,400.00
2020 520-500361 FMNP Food Costs 90006025 $77,065.00

Subtotal $400,465.00

.  STATE
FISCAL
YEAR

CLASS TITLE
ACTIVITY

CODE
AMOUNT

2021 102-500734 Contracts for Program Svc 90006007 $315,000.00
2021 102-500734- Contracts for Program Svc .  90006024 $8,400.00
2021 520-500361 FMNP Food Costs 90006025 $77,065.00

Subtotal $400,465.00

STATE

FISCAL

YEAR

CLASS TITLE
ACTIVITY
CODE

AMOUNT

2022 102-500734 Contracts for Program Svc 90006007 $78,750.00
2022 102-500734 Contracts for Program Svc 90006024 $7,000.00
2022 520-500361 FMNP Food Costs 80006025 $77,065.00

Subtotal $162,615.00

TOTAL: $1,680,610.00



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Commodity Supplomofftal Foods Progrim ond Sootor Fcrmero Martot Nutftlton Program

StBto of Now Hampshire
Department of HeaRh and Human Gorvlcos

Amondmootdl

Commodity SupplemontaJ Foods Program and Senior Farmore Maitot Nutrtdon Pregrant

TTib 1* Amendment to the Commodity Supplemental Foods Program end Senior Formeri Marltet Nutrition
Program contract (horalnafler reterrad to as 'Amendment 81 *} dated tha 22 day of February. 2016, is by end
between the State .of New Hampshire. Department of Health end Human Services (herelnefter referred to as the
"State' or 'Deportment') cir>d Community Action Program BeiXnap<Merr1mad( Counties, inc., (hereinafter referred
to as the Controctor"). o ncn-profh corporation wfih e piece of business ei 2 lr>dustdal Parit Drive, CorKord. NH
03302.

WHEREAS, pursuant to en agreement (the "Contracf) opproved by the Governor and Executive Council on June
2i. 2017, Item 49. the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and condftions specified
in the Contract es emended and In consideration of certain sims spedfiad; end

WHEREAS, tha State end (he Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment schedules
end terms and oorxtitions of (he contract: end '

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions. Paragraph 16. the State may modify the scope of work ond the
payment schedule of the contract by written agreemem of the perties;

WHEREAS, the perties agree to modify ihe scope of lorvices.

NOW THEREFORE, (n consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained In the
Contract end set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as foOowe:

1. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.9. to road: E. Maria Relnemann. Esq.. Director of Cordracts end Procurament

2. Amend Form P-37. Block 1.10 to read: 603-271-9330

3. Amend Exhibit A. Scope of Services, to add Sectbn Compliance, to road:

6. COMPUANCC

6.1 The Contracta hereby agrees that R will cornply wfth Trtie VI of the Civil Rlgf^ Act of 1964 (42 -
U.S.C: 20Ci0d et seq.). Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. 16B1 ei seq.).
Section 504 of the Rehabiinatlon Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 794). Age OlscriminaUon Act of 1875 (42
U.S.C. 6101 et seq.); Title ll and TiUa til of the Americans wtth Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990 es
amended by the ADA Amendment Ad of 2008 (42 U.S.C. 12131-12189) as implemented by
Depsftment of Justice regulations ai (26CFR Parts 35 and 36): Executive (3rder 13166,
Improving Access to Servicas for Persons with Limited English Proficiency.* (August 11. 2000). el)
provtstons required by the Implementing regulations of the U.S. Department of Agricuflure (7 CFR
Pan 15 et seq); and FNS directives end guldeSnes to the effect that no person shall, on the ground
of race, color, riational origin, age, sex. or disability, be excluded from participation in. be denied
the benefits of, or otherwise be subjected to dtscrimlnaUon under any program or activity lor which
the Contractor recefves Federal financial essistance from FNS; and hereby gives assurance (liat ft
will immediately take measures nacassary to effectuate this agreement.

6.2 By providing this assurance, the Corttractor agrees to compile data, maintaih records end submit
records end reports es required to permit effective enforcemnt of the nondiscnmination lows, end
to perrrtft Department peraonnel during normal working houra to review ertd copy such records,
books end aooounts, access ouch fadlitiss. end interview such persoruwl as needed to ascertain
compSance with the norKfiscrtmiriatian Owe. If there ere any violations of this assurance, tha -
Depaftment of Agjlcutture shall have the right to seek judidsl enforoement of this assurance.

Comrrwwy AOlon Piogrsm Amefldnenoi
8<ant^McwlrrwA CotfiOeo. bx.
RFP-201S4}PHS-U-COMWOOl P«0B t 0(4



New H^pshlre Department of Health and Human Serviced
CdmmodltKf^pptemental Foode Progrem and 8entbr Fonhere Martot Nutrnion Program

'6.3 T>tb esauronoe is ghron in consideration of and for d)e purpose of obtaining any and aD Federal
financia) essistarice. grants, and baro of Federal furbs. reimbursable ejg>ondtture9, grant, or
donation of Federal property er>d Irtterest in property, the det&a of Federal personnel, (he sale end
lease of. and the permissipn to use Federal property or interest in such property or the liimlshlng
of services wrfthout conaiderotldn or at a nominal considefation. or at a consideration that b
reduced for the purpose of assisting tho recipient, or in recognition of the public interest to be
senrod by such sale, lease, or furnishing of oorvices to the roclpioni, or any improvements made
with Federal finartdal essbtance extended to the Program applicant by -USDA. Ths Includes any
Federal egreemenl. arTartgement. or other contract that has oe one of its purposes the provblon of
cash assbtaneo for the purchase of food, end cash essbtance for purchase or ramal of food
service equipment or arty otlw financial essbtance extertded in reliance on the reprasentatlons
end agreements made in (hb assurance.

ConvTSBpy AcOon Piogrvn Amenaiiert SI
■ Befcnsp MtnliiaaLCoubo. bx.
RFP.20ie-OPHS-12<COUUMt



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Commodity Supptonontal Foods Progmm end Senior Fermere Mertifli Nutrlttoo Progmm

This amendmert shaD be eflecttvo upon the date at Governor and Executtve CouncD approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of Nvh Hampshire
OeparttMnt of Heeim and Humen Services

Date
fedii yim[ Vj^

Use Morris

Director

Community Action Progmm
BeOinap-Merrimadr Inc.

3/13/2018

Dale cimne Aerictmne Agri

Executive Director

AcfcnoMedgement of'Controctor's signature:

State ct New Htmpshire, County of Mcfrimtck on 3/13/2018 before the understgr^ed offrter,
pe'S3ft8lly;appeafBd'.the'person Wenttfied'dfroclly,above, or satisfoctority proven lo be the person whose name Is
signed abo^m. and.'edmowAedged that s/he:executed this document In the capacity indicated above.

I
Sbrotum Publlc:or Justioe^Tie Peace

AATtnrtBOSrAltDMBayMek^ltoBB^to v
••s»Ciiii>iiiiiiweeni(u>enau

Name end Tltlerof Notary:or;Justice-of the Peace'

My Commission Expires: '

CommuWy AeOon
SeOwpp IfcrrtiwX Cortta. Inc
RFP-20lSOf^12-COUMO-Ot

MiendmertSt

p«e«sar4



Now Hiampshtre Oopartinent:of Heatth end HumantServlcea
Commotf^ dupptomsntal Foods Program snd'Sbnior Farmora Msftot NutrtttoA Program

The pracedlng AmerKtmsnt. having beert roviewed by this.office. is approved as to form, substance, and execution.
J  , •• •

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

4/.^
Date

\i i/(A^
Name

Tltls: h /CU

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amer^dment was appro^ by (hb^Qoyemor and ExeojtKre Council of the State
of New. Hampshire at the MeraHno.on: fdata of mggiinat

OFFICE OF THE.SECRETARY OF STATE

Dote Name;

Trtle:

Ccrrmrty AcSon Progrtm
BcOmp McfTlmadt Courses, (ne.
RFF>201S-0mS-12-C0UMO01

Amendnwi fi

P*9e4 oTA



STATC OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

»tur£KO«vt,cortcoftD.KM 03M14Sa>

Jdtnj K ttkrn *6i.i7t^ TD& Aoar l«B.7tS.2M4
c

LbiMsrrte
D4ral«r

May 22. 2017

His ExceDency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu ^
anjd the Honorable CouncB

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Publtc Health Services to
enter into an agreement with Community Action Program of Betknap and Merhmack Counties, Inc.
yendor 0177203-6003) to provide Commodity Supplemental Food Program and Senior .Farmers'
Market Nutrition Program services statewide in an amount to exceed $1,660,610 effective July 1,
2017 or upon Governor and Executive Council approval, whichever is later through September 30,
2021, 100% Federal Furtds.

Funds to support this reque^ are anticipated to be avaBable in Slate Fiscal Year 2016. 2019,
2020, 2021 and 2022 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future opera^
budgets, with the authority to adfu^ encumbrances between state ftscal years. If needed and justified
without further approval from the Govemor anid Executive Council.

See Attached Fiscal Details

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to provide Commodity SupptementsI Foods Prpgrarh and Serw
Farmefs' Market Nutrition Program services statewide to eligible dierits. These programs'work to

t  tmprove the health of low-income elderly persons al least 60 years of age by supplementing their diets,
with nutntious foods year round and fresh fruits and vegetables in the summer.

The Food and Nutrition Service, an agency of the U.S. Department of ̂ rlcutture (USDA)
administers the Commodity Supplemental Food Pr^ram. The USDA purchases food and makes it
available to the State Blcng with funds for administrative costs. The Commurilty Action Progrem of
Beiknap and Merrlmack Counties will be responsible for doing outreach and identify^ potential senior
partidpants. screening for eligibinty. manegirYg food inventory and m8intainir>g required papervrotk
according to USDA requirements. In addition, they will be responsible for orde^. stor^ and
reporting Inventory of the USDA Commodity Supplemental Food Program foods. In addition, the
Contractor will provide referrals to other welfare, nutritiort, and health care programs such as the
Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women. Infants, and Chfidren (W1C). the Supplemental
Nutrition Assst^ce Program (SNAP), Medicaid. and Medicare.

The Senior Farmers' Market Nutrition Program awards grants to provide low-income seniors
with fresh fruits and vegetables purchased from NH farmers. The Community Action Program of



His Excettency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
end the Honorable Counol ̂
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BeOtnap and Merrimack Counti^ wiO use prepackaged bulk fresh fruits artd vegetatries that are
purchased dtrectfy from authorized NH farmer and distributed directly to etigibte cEenls. tn addctm,
they wil) be required to aulhorize, monitor, and reimburse the NH eligible fanners.

On Februapr 3, 2017 the Departiront published a Request for Proposals to soiicH proposals
from qualified applicants. The Request for Proposals was available on the Oepartmertt's website from
February 3, 1017 through March 23,1017. One (1) proposal was received.

I

A team of Indivfduab with program specific knowledge reviewed the proposab. The Community
Action Program of Belknap and Merrimdcfc Counties was selected. The bid summary Is attached.

This contract contains language which allows the Department to extend contracted services for
up to four additional years, contingent, upon satisfactory performance, continued funding and Governor
and Executive Coundl approval.

Notwrthstanding any other provision of the Contract b the contrary, no services shall continue
after June 30, 2017, and the Oepar^errt shall not IM liable for any payments for services provided after
June 30. 2017, unless and until an appropriation for these services has been recieived from the stats
legislature and funds encumbered for the SFY 2018-2019 and SFY 2020-2021 biennia.

Should -the Governor and Executive Counol not approve this request, low-lnccme elderly
persons may not have access to nutritious foods or fresh fruits and vegetables to supplement their
diets.

Area Served; Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the U.S. Department of Agricutture

In the event that Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to
support (his program.

Respectfully submitt^.

Approved by:

Lisa Morris

Direbtor

iffrey A. Meyers
Commssionef.

Ttv D9p6/tm9fit of M9dth and Human Sarribss' Miishn s to fain communitios ond femBios
tn pfovkJing opportunities for cb/ens to achieve healttt end irtdependence.



FISCAL DETAILS

OS-8S«0-90201»42600000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. OEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SERVICES, HHS: DMSfON OF PUBUC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION
HEALTH AND COMMUNITY SERVICES. WIC SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRmON PROGRAM

STATE

FISCAL

YEAR

CLASS TITLE
ACTIVITY

CODE
AMOUNT

2018 102-500734 Contmcts for Prooram Svc 90006007 315.000.00

2018 102-500734 Contrsds for Prooram Svc 90006024 1.400.00

2018 520-500361 FMNP Food Costs 90006025 0.00

Sub total 318.400.00

STATE

FISCAL
YEAR

CLASS TITLE
ACTIVITY

CODE
AMOUNT

2019 102-500734 Contracts for Program Svc 90006007 315.000.00

2019 102-500734 Contracts for Program Svc 90006024 6.400.00

2019 520-500361 FMNP Food Costs 90006025 77.065.00

Sub total 400.469.00

STATE
FISCAL

YEAR

CLASS TITLE
ACTIVITY
CODE

AMOUNT

2020 102-500734 Contracts for Prooram Svc 90006007 315.000.00

2020 102-500734 Contracts for Prooram Svc 90006024 8.400.00

2020 520-500361 FMNP Food Costs 90008025 77.065.00

Sub total 400.466.00

STATE
FISCAL

YEAR
CLASS TITLE

ACTIVITY

CODE
AMOUNT

2021 102-500734 Contracts for Program Svc 90008007 315.000.00

2021 102-500734 Contracts for Program Svc 90006024 8.400.00
2021 520-500361 FMNP Food Costs 90006025 . 77.065.00

Sub total 400A65.00

STATE

FISCAL

YEAR

CLASS TITLE
ACTIVITY

CODE
AMOUNT

2022 102-500734 Contracts for Program Svc 90008007 78.750.00
2022 102-500734 Contracts for Prooram Svc 90006024 7.00000

2022 520-500361 FMNP Food Costs 90006025 77,065.00

Subtotal 162,816.00

TOTAL; $1,680,61000



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Office of Business Operations
Contracts & Procurement Unit

Summary Scprino.Sheet

Coniwadtty Supptmimui foeSs ffrosimv sftd
Seidof Femwe UsM Ftutrmon

•RFPJ«imo

RFP-2018-0PHS-12-COU UO

RFP Wumber

1.

Bidder Name

CAP 8M CounUse, Inc.

Peta/Fetl

Uajdmum

Pclnte

AcKwi
F*OtntS

200 100

1.

Revtever Namee
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Communty a Him Serv (lech)

5.
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Communiiy A HSh Seiv (Cost)



FORM NVMBBR M7 (vcrte ftVlS)
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IJ CflmmPtnao
Munber

6022S.3293

l.d Aeeeaai NisJito
emOOOOKte-MBANBteOTM

1.7 CofflpkOonDite
September )a 3021

IJ PriocUmbdon

S1.6IOJIO
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MOStttoAfeaqr
«Ca-27}.9246

Namber
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Br DIjccter, Od:

1.17 Approval by (he Aitamojr Oaeral (Poem..Sbbsteaeo tod Exeettooe) lyoefireOib;
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2. BMPLOYMENTOFCOhrnUCTOR/SERVICCSTO

BE PERFORMED. The Stile of Nr« Himpihift, acting.
Ovough the agency identified in Mock.l.i ("Statt'O. cnpgts
oontiaooi {dcwifled is block I.) (XomnctdO to perform,
lad (he Connctor tlull perform, the work or ulc ofBOodi, or
both, idmtified and more ptrtieulvly deicffbed in (he auchied
EXHIBTT A which is inco^rated herein by reCercnce
(-Serviees-). ' '

y EFFECTIVE DaTE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
}.I Netwiihsundtng toy promion oflhii Agreemoit (o the
oontrvy. and subject lo (he ipprovti of (he Governor tnd
Executive Council of (he State of New Hampshlrci If
ippltcahle. (his Agroement, and ill obligniom of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agnemtnt.as; indicated in
bbck l.it,unlcssM such approval b required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on (he dau the
Agreement Is signed by (he Stale Agency as shown in block '
LMC^ffccUvc batO.
ii I r ihc Contactor commences the Servioes prior to (he
E/Teaivc Date, ail Services perfbrmed by the Contractor prior
to the Effeaive Dste.thall.be performed at the sole risk of the
Comnctor, and in th'e event'thai this AgrecrTreni does not
become effective; (he Sute shall have no ilabilhy to the
Coanaa, bclixling wiihoutlimiiation, any obligation (o pay
the Contractor for.any oostsincurred-or Services performed.
Corirac(Or.musi:oorT^ae:aI).Scrvices by the Compictkm Date
tpcdned.inb)ock.l.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE.OF.ACREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any. provision of iliisrAgreemeni to the
contrary, all obligations of therSutc hocunder. including,
without Isniixtion; die eominuanoe of'payments hereunder. arc
contingent upocr (KeavailabiUty and oominued appropriation
of funds, and in rro event shall (he State be liable for any
payments hereunder la excess of such ivallabie appropriated
fmda. in the event ofartduciion or termination of

•ppfopriated hmds, the State shall have the Hghi to withhold
payment until sueh.hjndsbeeomeavaiiable. ifever, and shall
have (he right to termmite this Agreement immediately upm
giving the Connctor notice of such lermlnitlofl. The Static
shall not be required to aaasfcr fonds horn any othff account
10 the Account identified in block 1.6 in the everu funds'm ihat

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT. .

5.1 The contract price, method of peyirrent. tnd terms of '
paymera.arc Ideraificd and more panlcularly described in
EXHIBIT 8 whkh Is inoorporatcd herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by (he Stale of the contract price shall be the
only and (he con^lete itimbuncmcni to (he Contractor for all
opcnses. of utialevcr nature Incuntd by dw Contractor in the
pofcnnanoe hereof, and shall be (he ort^ liod the compleie
corrpensaiion to the Contractor for the Services. The State
.shall have no liability to (he Contractor other than (he eentnct
price.

Page

9 J The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise pyabic to (he Contractor under (his Agrcemed
chose li(iuldi^ amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 dirottgh RSA I0:7<c or any other provision-of law.
9.4 Notwithstanding any pro.visiort in this Agreement to the
contrary, tnd notwithstanding unexpected drcumstartccs, in
no event shall the total of all pnyments auihoriBd, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitatfof) tei forth in Mock

1.1.

6. COM PLUNCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND RECULATION&r EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY,

6.1 In eenncciion with the performance oflhe Services, the
Contnctor shall comply with all statutes, taws, regdiationi,
and orders of federaJ. state, county or munkipal authcritio
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to. civil rights and equal opporustity
laws. This may include the requirrmcnt to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that penons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, reocive tnibrmarion from, arKl convey
infonnation to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor

shall comply with all applicable copyright tows.
6J During (he tm of this Agreement, the Coraractor shall
not discriminate agaictst employees or appli^ta for
employment because of race, color, rciigioo, creed, age. sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
ifTirmailyeaolontoprevenisuchdiscrimlRttion. .
6 J If this Agrtcmeni is funded in any pan by monies of (he
' United State, the Conireetor shall coR^y with all the
provisfonsofExecutiveOrderNo. M346 ("Equal
Empfoymcnt Opportunity'^ e supplerttcnted by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.f.R. Put 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
e the State of New Hampshire or (he United States Issue to
implemera these reguiat)^ The Ccntnctor fbrther agrees to
pemit the State or United States accca to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascenui^g oomplianee-wiih all rules, regulations and crden.
and the covenartis. terms and conditiom of ihu Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform (he Smioes. The Contraoor
warrants (hat all pcnonnc) engagied in the Servioes'shall be
qualified to perform the Services, tnd thai! be properly
licensed and ctherwiie.authorized to do so imdier all applkable
laws.

7 J Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the torn .of
• this Agrcemot. and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in Mock 1.7, the Comrictor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor Or otha poien, frrm or
corporation "^th whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any persoe wtw Is a Suic
employee or ofTidal, who 'is materially Involved'm the
procurcrneni, ■dminiRrtiion or perfomaaoe of this
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AymimiL. This provbion ihill jurvivc tcrmimiloQ of (his
AireexnenL

TJ The ContraeUni Officer spcdftcd bi Mock 1.9, or his or
hcrsuc«sor.tfti]lbc(heSiiie'ircprt3eAUdvc. Inthccvoit
of cny diipue concerning (he cnfcipitdllon of this Agrcemcni,
the Comnctiog OfDccr's tfediioa shall be QoiJ for the Sine.

t. EVENT OF OEPAULT/R£MEO)SS. .
t.1 Any one or more of the folio«i<nt ocu or omissions of (he
Comnctor shsll oooitltttte cn event of default hereundcr

C^vcai of OeCiuir):

t.KI fiihue to pefom (he Service saiisfaciorily or on
schedule;
l.t.2 (lihtft (D submit any report required hereuukr. and/or
1.1J failure to perform any other covenant, term or oondition
efthis AgrcemcnL
1.2 Upon (he uuimttKJC of eny Even) of Oetiuli, the Sisu
may take any one, or more, or all, of the followfng acUons:
li.l ̂ ve the Contractor a written notke spcdfying the Event
of Ocfsult and requiring it to be remedied uriihin, in the
ahocnoe of a greater or lesser ipcetlkation of lime, thirty (}0}
dqri fhsm the date of the notice; and If the Event ofDeftuh ii
mt dmely remedied, temilnate this Agreement, efrcctive two
(2) days after giving this ConirtiKDr notice of termination:
tJ.2 ̂ vc (he Contractor a written notice apedfytng the Eveot
of Ocfauh and luspending all payments Id be made under, ihb
Apeerrcm and ordering that the portioa of the eorttraa price
which would otherwise aeorue to the CottttactDr during the
peiod ftom (he date of such notke until such time as the State
determines that the Connctor has cured the Event ofOefawh

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
IJ J set off against any other obligations the State nay owe to
(he Contractor aay darnago the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Ocfault; andfor

1.2.4 iren (he Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
lemedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONnOENTIALmr/
PR^ERVATION.
9.1 As-used in this Agreement, (he word "data" shall man all
tnfitrmitim and things developed or obtained during (he
performance oE or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreoncnt, tneludifl^ but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, rriipi, charts, sound rtcordinga, vidOo
itcordlngs, pictorial reproductions, dnwings, analyses,
graphic rcpresantatjoas, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, mcmonnda, papers, and documents; .
all whether Hnbhed or uafiniihed.

92 All data and any propcny whkh has been reedved born
the State or purchased with Amdi provided for that purpose
under thb Agreement, shall be the proper^ of the State, and
shall be retmed to (he State upoa demand or upon
termltadonorthis Agreement for any rcasotL
9J Confidaftialityofdati thiO be governed by N.H. ftSA
chaptzrPl-AorflthereitlaiAgbw. OLsctosujeefdaia
requires pricrvrriften approval of (he Stale. .

Page

10. termination. In the event of,an early lenninfllOAef
(his Agreement for any reason other tlw ihecomplctlOBofthe
ScTvlocs. the Conmctor shall deliver to the Contraalng
Officer, not later than fifteen < 15) days after the date of
terminadon, a report C^erminalioa RcponO describtng In
detail all ScMca performed, and the cootrwct price earned, (o
and including the dste of urmbmicft. The fom, suhjcci
maner. content, and number of copies of the Termirstloo
Report thai) be icknti^ to those of any Fiosl Report
described in the ittKhcd EXHIBri A.'

11. CONTRACTOR'S BBLATION TO THE STATE. In

the perfbmuneeof this Agreement (he Contrector b in all
respects an independent oontrKtor. and b ndther cn agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contrvtar nor any of iu
officers, cntployeeA agents or merabeh shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefns, worters' conpensnlon
or ccher emolumenis provided by (he State lo hs erapbyoea.

(2. ASSICNMeNT/OELECATION/SUBCONT^CTS.
The Contmsor shall rioi assign, or otherwise iransfa any
interest In this Agreement without the prior written notke and
consent of the Stale. None of the Saviors shall be

luboomiieted by the Comreoor without the prior wrioco
nodoc and consent of (he State.

13. INOEMNmCATION. The Contracxar shall ̂ end.

irtdtmnify and hold harmless the State, hsonkersand
employees. Oom and agains any and all losses suffered by (he
State, its ofEcera and ernployeo, and any and all claimv
liabiliUes or penalties aumed against (he State. 16 officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on nocount of,
based or retuiilng from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oO (he acts or omisiloru efthe
Cofltrtetor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
eomained ihil) be deemed to oonititute a wtiva of the

sovereign ifflmunily of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
aurvWc the termination of this Agteemem.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Cofltnctor shall, al Its lok expense, obtain and
maintain In force, and shall require any suboontractor or
assignee to obtain and mbnuin in Ihr^ the following
Insurance:

14. I.I comprehensive gcncrtl llibiliiy insttftnoe against all
dsims of b^ly Injury, death or property dama^ In amounts
of not less than SI.000.000per occurrence and 12,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
properly subjeo to tubparagriph 9J herein, in an amount not
less thin tOH of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The polieia described In subptrtgraph 14.1 hoeb shall
be on policy forms and cndononcnls approved for use In the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Inswtnee, and Issued by Insurers licensed in the State ofNcw
Hampshire.
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U J The Contractor shall furnish to the Contractini Officer
Identified in Mock (.9. or hb or hCTsuccespr, a ccrlificaiefi)
of insujince for «U itmoa&ce rcquiiedunder dtia Agrctmeni.
Contractor shall also ftanish to the Catnraaln| Officer
{deniiried In Mock t .9. or his or her successor, ccrtificaiefs) of
imtrmce (brail renewil(s)afmsunnoere^rtd undathis
A^Tcmem tw later than chirry ()0) days prior to the eipimion
due of each of the insurance policies. The catiriciic(s)of
fattixtnce and any renewals ihercof dull be attached and arc
Ineorpomed herein by refcrcnoc. £achccni(lea<c<s)or
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the ContractiAg Officer tdemified in Meek 1.9. or hU
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
fMiice of cancellation or modificstion of the pMky.

II WORKERS* COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this i^rcemenl, the ConlnoorBgiTes.
certifies and wrarrtrus thai (he Cont/Ktor b in compliance with
or oempi from.the raquac7nentsorN.H. RSA chapter 381 ̂A
fiyofisr$' ComptwHon").
IS.7 To the eiteni the Conuactor is subject (b the
requbcmenu ofN.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Cettfractor shall
maintain, and requiit any subcortlraetor or issipee to secure
and mairaain, paymeM of Workers' Compensation in
.ODonectjoo wbh activities vihieh the person proposes to
undertake punumt to ihb AgrcBrnoL Contractor shall
furnish (he CoraraciingQITieer identified In Mock 1.9.or hb
or her tuceeasor, proof of Worten' Competsation in the
manner described in Nil. RSA chapter 2II'A and any
applfajblc renewal(s) thcrroC which shall be aiuched and arc
Incorporated hercln by rtfeance. The Stale shall not be
Tcsponsibk (or paymcruofany Workers' Compensation
pronuums or for.any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
anysubcontractor.or employee of Conmcior, which might
arise under applIcaMe sialcofKew-Hampshire Workers'
Compensation Uws.in oomeetion with (he pcrfortnuiee of the
Services under (his Agremneni.

U. Waiver of breach. No failure by the Stale (o
enforce any provisions hereof after.tnyiEvent efOcfauh shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights widi regard.to.that'Evna of
Ocfauh, or any subsequent Event of Oefliuii.' No exproas
(allure to enforce any Evm of Defkuh shair.be dcenied a
waiver of the right of (be State to enforce caehcnd aO of the
(Toviiions hereof upoo any forther or ctha Eventof Default
on.ihc part ofthe Contractor.

17. NOTICE, ̂ y notkc by a party hcmo to the other party
dial! be deetsed to have bero duly deiivered or given ti the
limeofreailingby certifBd mall, postage prepaid, in a United
Statei Post Office addrosed to the penks n the addresses
given In blocks 1.3 and 1.4, herein.

IS. AMENDMENT. Thb Agreement may be amendcdl
waived or disdttrged only by an (nstrtsnent is writing signed
by the panics hereto and onfy after approval of such*
amesdmera. waiva or ditchirge by the Ooromar and
Eaeeutivc Council of the State ofWew Hampshire unless no

such approvsl b required under the drcumsunces punuani to
State law, rule or poliey.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEM^ AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws oftheSuteofNew Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the bencfii of the pirtia and their respective
successon and assigns. The wording uacd-tn this Agreoncot
is the wording chosen by the pirties to express their mutual
intent, srd no rule of coratnicaioA shili be applied against or
in favor of any parry.

36. THIRD PARTIES. The partia hereto do not imoid to
benefii any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

31. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agrteraeni
are for referenee purposes only, and the words oonulned
(herein dud) in no way be held to cxplsbv-modify. ^
aid In (he interprcuiion, consi/uaion or meaning of the
prorisions of this Agrcemem.

12. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
•forth it) (he attached EXHIBIT C arc incorporated herein by
reference.

13. SCVSRABILTTV. tn the rvcm any oflhe provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of compcunt Jurisdiafon to
be cottcrsry to any stau or federal law, the remaining
provisions ofihis Agreement will rcmiin In full (btec and
effect

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. Thii Agreement, which may
be exECutcd in a number of couracrparts. each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the cmira Agreement and
understanding between the panks, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and undersundinp relating hereto.

Page 4 of 4
Conlrector Initials
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Exhibit A

Scone of Servte'ea

1. PROVISIONS APPUCABLE to ALL SERVICES

V1 The Contractor ̂ reea that to the extent future leQtsJatNe action tiy the New
Hantoehire.GenefBl CouH or federal or state court orders ntay have en Impact on
the. Services desatoed herem. the Slate Agency has the right to modi^ Servtoe
priorities and expenditure roquirements under this Agreement so as to echl^
compliance therewith.

1.2 The Contractor shafi pursue any and all appropriate public mroes of funds that
are appficabte to (he funding of the.Services, operations prevention, acquisition,
or rahabOitation. Appropriate recorda ahan be maintalnad by the Contractor to
document actual funds received or denials of funding from such pubOc souroes of
funds.

1.3 The Contractor will submit a' detailed deschpUon of the language assistance
service they vKIl provide to persons with Qmlted English profidency to ensure
meanlngfu] access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date,

1.4 Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the cordrary. no services
shad continue after June 30.20f 7. end the Oepartrvtent shaO not be Dabto for any
payments for services provided efter June 30. 2017, unless and until en
appropriation for these services has been received from the state legislatuie and
funds encumbered for the State Ftscal Year 2018-2019 and 2020-2021 biennla.

2. STATEMENT OP WORK

2.1 . The Cor)tractof shall provide overall edministralion of the programs.

2.2 The Contractor shafl provide statewide public health nutrition services through
the admlnlstraticn of the CprrtmodlTy Supplemental Food Program (CSFP) and
the Senior Farmers; Marlcet Nutrtiion Program (SFMNP). wKh a targeted focus on
countes with a greater at-risk elderty poputadon. while meeting at teast 95% of
the assigned caseload..

2.3 The Contractor shaQ determine program eligibUlty of elderty appticanta for the
CSFP and SFMNP according to (he annual USDA CSFP and SFMNP Inoomd
Guldelmas. at or below 130% tederai poverty level

2.4 The Contractor shad mamtain a minimum of three P) years of participant
certification master files at a central location that b accessible for audit and
review.

2.5 The Contraoor shall work with the state agency to produce required program
resources to^administer the CSFP and SFMNP accordtng to federal ragutailone.
v4ilch shall dictude; participant rights and rules InformaUon, training, educatlonai
materiab. end cn-slte management evaluations.

2.6 Tfte Contractor shaO prcwide culturaOy and iinguisticaOy appropriate services for
both (he CSFP ettd SFMNP.

NHOHHS

EdiM A - Seopo of Swvkm Contrsdorl
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Exhibit A

2.7 Tha Contractor shaO be required to oompty wtth all USO/VFNS regulallona,
poQckes and instructions and state policies and procedures for the CSFP and
SFMNP. The USOA/FNS regulations for CSFP can be found at
httpi/AuMVr.fns.usda.Qcw/csfp/regulations The SFMNP regulatjons can be found
at http:/fo«ww.fns.usda.gov/sHes/defauVfilesMc/SFMNPRegutations

2 .B The Corttractor shall make adjustments to the provision of services as necessary
to ensure complianoe with changes in the federal regufolkms governing the
CSFP end SFMNP that rhay occur during the period of (he cor>troct.

2.9 The Cotnractor shall agree to be monitored by the NH OHHS and/or any
USOA/FNS entity, Including the OfRoe of Inspector General (DIG) aurfitors.

2.10 The Contractor strall im^ment procedures In cooperation with the Oepartmerrt
to detect and preverrt dual paitidpatian wtthin the CSFP and SFMNP.

2.11 The Contractor shall maintain an adequate accounting and record keeping
system to ensure e distinct audit trail which shan inctude but not linftited to:

2.11.1 Accounting tedgers:

2.11.2 Copies of all subcontracts;

2.11.3 Payments;

2.11.4 Particjpation rates; and

2.11.5 Invoices and correspondence.

2.12 The Contractor will provide fbiandal and program data to the Department on a
monthly basts, as tMi) as upon request.

2.13 The Contractor shall ensure that panldpstion meets but does not exceed the
casetoed assigned by the Department for CSFP and SFMNP without prior
approval.

2.14 The Contractor shaO perform required yearty CSFP and SFMNP race artd
ethnicrty reporting (FNS-191)to the Department and FNS.

2.15 The Contractor shall adhere to USDA Office of CNII Rights policies, (nctuding
insertion of the riondischmlnation statement on aD outreach and program
materials. For all approprlste Contractor agency staff and ̂ unteers, tha
Contractor shall ensure that no partldpani will be subject to discrimination under
the program on the grounds of race, color, natfonai origin, age, sex or dlsablGty.

2.16 The ContrMqr provide, pa^pants up-to-date r^utritional information and
matertials r^^lng the availabtlily of other nutrition, health and sodal service
assistance programs In their service area.

2.17 The Contractor shaD Inform spplicants of their rights end responsfoiltUes at (he
time of oertrncation tn the CSFP and SFMNP.

2.18 The Contractor shall Implemenl fab hearing procedures for persons who file
statements claiming InapproprlBte adverse action.

2.19 The Contractor shall meet the epeclaJ needs of the homebound eUerty by
utJilzino projdes end vdurrteers.

KHOHHS

Exfibl A - Scope of Sovfoo Coitrodor
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2^0 Tho ControctorshaD pursue datms against particlpantd or farmers. 8S necessary
or required.

2.21 The Conlrador ehajj coordiruto for referrals end enroQment (nhath«s with ot^er
organizations such as the NH Senior Center Netwodt er>d Felth^dsed Servloes
Warehouse 8r>d Distribution Requirements

2.22 The Cortfraetor shaU provide warehouse feciOties for reoeMr>g. stodr^o. and
dbtrlbulion of USDA commodities for CSFP arvj fresh ftuit ar)d vegetabie
b<mdles for SFMNP In oompflanoe with state end federal regulatkms.

2.23 The Contractor shall sNp commodities and fresh fruK and vegetable bundles to
the oertlficatiorydlstrlbution sites based on packing dates, ensuring that the oldest
commodities end produce are used first.

2.24 The Contractor shaO provide adequate refrlgeretion for up (o five (5) days for
fresh bulk produce.

2.25 . The Contractor sh^ order and maintain appropriate leveb of inventory, maintain
end approprlatefy safeguard USOA In their handUng, storage end
distribution per 7 CFR 250.14(b).

' 2.26 The Contractor shall perform required monthly CSFP caseload and convnodity
Inverttory reporttrtg (FNS<153) (0 FNS.

,  The fottoviring shall appty to SFMNP only.

2.27 The Contractor shaO work with the NH Department of Agrteulture to recruit,
authorize, end train farmers to provide bulk purchase of authorized prdduoe for
the SFMNP.

2.28 The Contractor shall ooordlnate with farmers for (he delivery of the bulk
purchased bundles of produce to CSFP dintc sites statewide.

2.29 The Contrador shall be responsible for Ihe production of the Caimer app&cation,
agrMment, training -end supplemental educattonal materials for senJor
paitidpaAts.

2.30 The Contractor shall provide annual farmer orientation and training for ihe
.  SFMNP.

2.31 The Contractor shaO appoint a coordirtetor resportslble for the overaO
implementation of SFMNP.

3. STAFRNO

3.1 The Contractor shafl maintain a competent and adequate level of staffing to meet
the scope of Mrvfces end assigned caseload. If (raining Is rroeded. describe
whet those training rteeds are. as weO as the agency's wlOlngness to ertsure that
ell staff In need of trainir)g receives it prior to commencement of service deOvery.

4. PERFORMANCE MEASURES

4.1 Percent Of low-lnoome seniors enrolled In CSFP.

4.2 Pcroerrt of bw-iiwome seniors receiving SFMNP during summer distribution
months.

NHOHHS

EjMba A > Scope or Services " " Ccrtnau
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4.3 Percent of tow^income aeniofs receMng nutrition education material hlohDghtlng
the health benefita of CSFP and SFMNP foods.

6. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

5.1 The Contractor ahaD provide an Annual Report no later than September 30 of
each ccntmct year for CSFP and SFMNP.

NHOHHS

A * Scope Of SarvloM Contractor
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Mathod and Cofidltlonfl Procedent to Payment

1. Ttds uwitioa b funded wtth fundi from the Cotaloo of FeOemJ Oomeftic-Aeibtsnce (CFDA) #10.S75
US Oei3»tmeftt of AiBilcuBure. Food end Nutrtton Sofvtoo; Commodity Supofemonbl Food Program
vid 010:576. US Oepaftmeni of Agrtcurtura, Food ond NuOttkm S^vlce. Senior' Fennort Medtet
Nutttton Program, in provldiJig tendcet purausnt to ExUdH a, Scope of Servlcee. The corajactof
agreea to prewtde (he tervloee tn EihtbK A Scope of SeMco* ccmpflanoe wtth funding
requirement*. ■

2. The State •hall pay the Contractor on amount not to exceed the Price Limitation on Form P37, Block
1.6. for the teMce* provided by the Contractor purtuanl to Exhibit A Scope of Service*.

3. Payment for et^enset •hail be on a co*t reimburtemenl bast* only tor actual expendttures.
Expenditure* ihkl be In eocordance wtlh the approved line Item budgets shown in Exhlbfis B-1
throughB-d.

4. Payment for tervicet shafl be msde a* fciiow*:

4.1. The Contrector must submit monthly tnvoice* for relmburtement by the 20* of each month for
sefvtoe* specified in Eidiiblt A Scope of Services. The State shad make payment to the
Contractor iMthin thirty (30) days of receipt of each Invotoe for Cchtractor tervfoes provided
pursuant to this AgreemerrL

4.2. The Invoices must

4.2.1. Clearly Identify the amount requested end the services performed during that period.'
4.2.2. includo a detailed account of the woik performed, end a fist of de&verabies completed

during that prior month, as outSned in Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

4.2.3. Separately identify any work and amount of ettrtbotabie and performed by on epproved
contractor, 8 applicable.

4.2.4. Sepanrtely Ideittfy any experrses incurred by the Comractor that wffi be considered
Non-federal Match per the fUrxfing grant requtremerrts.

4.2.5. Provide a rrrontfdy signed certification, that the matching fimds. equaJ to 20% of the
corttrad award amount which may be in cash or in .kind, era not derived from federal
sources.

4.3. invoices end repots identified in Section 4.1 and 4.2 must be tiavnitted to:

NH Oepartroent of HeiBh end Human Servicos
DMsion of PubOc Health Services
29 Haxen Drive

Concord, NH 03301

5. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as Identifled In
ExhibitA

6. A final payment request thsD be submitted no later than sixty (60) days after the CurttaU ends.
Falure to submft the tnroice. and accompanying documentation could resufl in nonpayment

7. Not«4thHanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under thb
Contract may be wtthheid. In whole or in part, in (he evcrd of noneompQertce with ony State or Federal
few. rvde or regulation appOcable to the tenrioe* prodded, or if (he said eenrlces have not been
completed In accordance with the terms and eorxtittons of this Agreement.

6. Notwfthst&ndlng paragraph 16 of Form P-37. General Proviiiont. an amer^menl Bmlted to the
ed}ustmerd of the amounts between budget One items and/or State Fiscal Years, reiated Items, and
amendments of related budget exhibits, con be made by whtten-agreement of both parties and do not
required additional approval of the Governor and Executive CotfKi).'

EiMteB Contnctor tnlWi
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BPEQALPHOVtaOMa

ContrsctDm Obfl^atloftt: Tbo Contractor eovenami and agrees that eQ funds received by the Contrsctof
under the Contrect than be .used ordy as psymem to the Contractor (or aervtces proved to eligB^le
MMdusb and. m the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as foiksM:

1. CompOartoe wtth Fe<ltral end Gtsta Laws: IT the Contractor (s permitted to determine the edglbOlty
of incCviduals such eDgiblOty determination thali b» made In acco^noe wtth oppUceble tedercl and
tiate laws, regulations, orders, guideflftet. poBdet and procedures.

2. Tbne and Msrvter Of DetennlrtatIoi>:EligibffitydetermnatlQns thai) be maM on forms provided by
the Oepsrtment fer that purpose artd shall be made and remade at such Umies as ore presotbed by
the Department.

3. Odcvmefttatlon; in add$on to the determination forms reqUred by the Ocpa'tmertt the Contractor
thai) maintaih a data filo on each recipient of aervlcea hereur^. wtUtfi file shaO Include aB
fofocmitlon necessary to support an edgibUily determlrtatfor^ end such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor ihafl furnish the Department \Mth eO forms and documentation
regarding iallgibliity determhationa that the Deptrenent may request or require.

4. Pelr Kearfnge: The Contractor understarfos that all appGcants for tervtoet' hereunder. as well as
indMduals'doclared ineOglbfo have a r1^ to a fob hee^ regarding that detennlnation. The
Contractor hereby covenants end agrees that di appiicsnts for servtees.shaD be permitted to fiD out
.an opplicstion form eiyl that eatft oppUcam or re^ppticsnt shad be informed of Ns/her right to a fab
heartng In accordance v4th Departrnent regutatioru.

5. Oretuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it Is a breach of thfo Contract to eocept or
make a payment, gratuity o.r offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any 5^>'Coniractor or
' the State bi order to influence the perfonrunee of the Scope of Work detaOed In Exhfoit A of thb
Contract The Stste^may termlrmte thb Conbact cr>d any aub^orrtrsct or sub-agreement if It b
detennined that paymenb. gratuities or offers of emptoyme'nt of.any kind w«re offered or received by
ariy offidab. ofAcert. emptoyees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive PeymentaiNotwlhstaitding anything to the contrary contained In the Contract or In any
other document, contract or uhderttandlng. R b espressty urfoeratood and agreed by the parties
hereto.- that no payments wOl be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for cosb Incurred for
ony purpose or for any services provided to any Individual prior to the Effective Dote of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for eipenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on wMch the indlvklual apples for services or (excepi as othenMse provided by the
fsdsral regutatiortt) prior fo a determnatlon that the Ihdhriduai b eligibie for such services.

7. Conditions of ̂rchase: Notwlthstendlno snythbtg to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shaO be deemed to obllgato or require the Department to pcrchase ser>4ces
hereunder at a rate which relrr^burses the Contractor bt excess of the Contractors cosa, ot o rate

which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such sendee, or at a
rate shlch exceeds the rate charged by the Contraetar to ineilglUe hdMduab or other third parly
funders for such service. If at any tbne durirrg the term of thb Corttract or after recelpl of (he Fbia)
Expen«£ture Report hereunder. the Department shall determfoe that the Contractor has used
peymerds hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or In excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to inellQlbie Indlvlduab
or other third party funders, the Department may eleci to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereur^. In which event new rates shall be etfabdshcd:
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the omount dl eny prior reimbursement In

excess of costs:

EIt*a C - S^KlD erqvktons

eMTi« 1 cT S

CentrsclDr MCUta

DM»



Mmt KamptMr* Depeftrtwrtof Ksiflhend Humin Benrtcea
Exhibft C

7.3. Oenund repayment of 0>e exeeu paymeni by the Corttreetor In event feiture to meke
•uch repayment thaii constb/te an Event of Del8t4t hereunder. When the Contreetor la
pentiWed to detsrmtne the ettg^Utty of IrtdMdueta tor eervices. the Controctor egreee to
retmbuTM the Department for oO furxft paid by (he Department to the Controctor tor tervteea
pravtded to any fndMdual «ho Is tourtd by the Department to be tneOglbto for luch aenrtces at
eny time during the period of retention, of records estabfeshed herein.

RECORDS; MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

0. BtolnterwnceofRecortte: In oddttlon to toe eOglbORy records specAed ebove. the Contractor
oovenants and agrees to maintein the foQowing'reconfs during the Contract Period;
6.1. Fiscal Reconts: books, reoords. documents and other data evidencing and reflecting aO costs

and other expenses bcuned try the Contractor in the performance of the ContracL and eD
income received or collected by the Cartfrector durtog the Centred Period, said records to be
msirtlalned in accordance vrflh eocour^ng,procedures and prectices «hkh sufficiently and
property reflect ail such costs trd expdues, and.which are ecceptsbia to the Department, and
to (nck^, wttoout nmbation, atl ledgm, books, recorda, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase regulsittorts and orders, voucfwri. requisltkm ftor materials, toventortes, vskjattons of
lr><Und contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, end other reoords reguested or required by the
Department

8.2. Stitttical Records: Statistical. enroOment attendance or vidl records tor each recipient of
teniiees during the Contreet Period, which records shaO include aO rixofds of application and
eOgtofUty Onctoding eD forms required to determine eOglblQty.fbr each such recipieni), records
reganfir>g the provision of services and all invoices submftM to the Depailmeni to obtain
payment for iixh services.

6.3. Medical Reoords: Where appropriate and as prescrfoed by the Department regutatfons. the
Cortbector shall retain medkal records on each pedent/redplent of services.

6. Audit: Contractor.ihafl subrrA an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the dose of the
ager^ ftscal year. It Is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Cfflce of Management end Budget Cifcutst A-133. 'Audits of States, Local Governments, and Ncn
Profll Organizations* end the provisions of Standarda for AudD of Governmental Organizations.
Progrsms. ActMUei end Functions. Issued by (he US Generel Accounting Offico (GAG standards) as
they pertain to flnandal compQanee audits.
9.1. Audit end Review: Durtng the term of tWs Contreet and the period far retention hereunder, the

Departrnem, the UnAed States Department of Health and Human Senrtces. and any of (heir ,
de^nated representatives shaD have access to as repots and records maintained pursuant to
toe Contract for purposes of sudU. exam|natior>. excerpts and transcripu.

9.2. Audit UatkOties: In addition to and not In eny way in (imitation of obilgatlpns of (he ControcL It Is
understood end agreed by the Contractor that (ha Contractsr shaO be hM labie for any itata
or (aderai audt exceptions and tfiell return to the DepartmenL cO payments mode under the
Ccnirect to which exccptton has been taken or which hs^ been diuOowed because of such an
exception.

10. ConflderttlaOty ef Records: All Wormalfon, reports, and records maintained hereunder or ooOected
in connection vrtlh the perfermance of (he services snd (he Contrecl shaD be confldential and ihaD not
be discfosed by the Controctor. provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations ef
the Department regartfng the use and disciosure of such (nformatlor). disclosure may be made to
pubte offldati requlrtng such Information In oonnectlon.with foelr offldat duties and lor purposes
directly connected to the adminlstnttlon of (he servlcei and the Contract and provided (ur^r, thai
the use or disdoiure by any party of any Information concerning a recipient fv any purpose net
dlrecfly cormecttd the admlnlstrsUon of the Oepartmere or the Contractofs resporpfoBibes tMth
respect to purchased services hereunder (s proWbltsd except on written consent of the coclpiert. hfi
attorney or guanflan.

EjtftM C - SomOI PmtiSns CwWvctor HbO.
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NoMrithitandIng anything to Ihe corttrary conutneb hertin tho oovtnants end condttont contelfted In
tho Paragraph thaO turviva (he termination of (he Contract for any reaaor^ whatsoever.

11. Repoita: FbcaiandSotitticacTheContrector agrees to submit the foQowtrtg reports at (he fono"iKr>g
times If requested t)y the Department.
11.1. Interim Flnandal Reports: Wrtitan interim financial reports contalnir^ a detaSed deacrgition of

an ootts and rwrvoOoMrabie expenses incurred by the Contractor to tf» dote of the rep^ imd
containing such other Informatton a* shaO be deemed satJtfaceory by the Department to
iustify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shafl be subm Bed on the form
designated by the D^rtmeni or deemed aabsfactory by the Department

11.2.' Fbal Report A final report shall be Mibmined <Mthln thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract The Ftnai Report shaO be in a form saWactory to the Deportment and shall
contain a sunanary statemerd of pro^ai toward goats and obfocttves stated in the Proposal
and other Infbrmation-reqirlred by the Depertmerd.

12. Complitton of Sertrleee: DisaDowanoe of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Depaitment of the
maxXnum number of units provided fOr In the Contract arel upon payment of (he price Omttatlon
hereunder, the Contract end oii the obligations of (he perdts hereunder (esoept such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of (he (ann of (his Corttract andfor
survive the lerminatton of the Contract) shaD termlhale. provided however, (hot if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Departrnem shafi tfsaDow any expenses claimed by the Corrtractor as
costs hereunder the Department shad retaki the right, at Its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expertses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Crodlta: AD documenta. nodecs. press releases, research reports and other mate^ls prepared
.  during or resulting ffo^n the performance of the scrvlcet of the Corrtract shall tncuide the foOowtng

ttatamerd:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, documenietc.}wasfir)aneedunder a Contract wtlh the State
of Nw Hampshire. De|»rtmenl of hleaiih and Humart Services, with fî s provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/ot such other funding aotfoes as were available or
required, e.g.. (he United Stales Department of Keafih and Human Services.

14. Prtor Approval and Copyright Orsnerahip: An matedats (written. vidBO. audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shaD fuve prior approval from DHHS before printing, prpductlon.
distribution or use. The DHHS wUl retain copyright ownership for any and al original materlats
produced, inetudlng, but not fimlted to. brochures, resource drectodes. protocots or guldefinee.
posters, or repcris.-Contracfor sha& not reproduce any matedais produced under (he contract vHthout
prior written approval from OHhS.

15. Operation of FatllUee: CompUance wtth Uwe and Reguiatlorte: m (he operation of any (adUtles
for prariding services, the Contractor shall comply with all (aws. orders and reguUitiorq of Mrai.
state, county end rmmldpa] outhodties end with any tfrectlon of any PubOc Officer or offic^
pursuant to' laws which thaS Impose an order or diiy upon the contractor with respect to (he
operation of the facility or the provlston of the .sendees at tuch facfiBy. If any governmental license or
pmfi Shall be required for the operation of (he said fadlity or the performance of the said servlees.
the.Contractor w(D procure said license or permit and wID at el) times comply with the terms end
condittorts of each tuch Dcense or peimft In correction w(to the foregdrtg requirements, (he
Contractor hereby cmmnants end ogrees that during (he term of thb Contrect the facdities shaO
comply edth ao rules, orders, regulations, ond requiremenb of the State Office of the Fire Marshal ond
the local fire protactlon agency, and sh^ be In conformance with focal build'ng end zoning codes, by*
laws and reguiadons.

16. Equal Employment Oppofluntty Plan (EEOP): The Contactor wOl provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) io the Office for CMI Rights. Office of Justto Rognims (OCR), ff ithas
receded a stogie awvd of SSOO.OOO or more, if the redplent receives t2S.OOO or more end has SO or
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more employees, ti maintain a current EEOP on (Qe and submit an EEOP Certiflcstjon Form to (he
OCR. ceding that its EEOP b on fBe. For redpients receivtng less than $25,000. or public grantees
e4(h fe««r Aan 50 employees, tegardiess of the amount of (he oward, (he redpieni «mD provide an
EEOP Certtflcotton Form to the OCR certifirlng It b not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizatloAs. irtdbn Tribes, end medieai and odueattonal Imtfiullons ere exempt from (he
EEOP requirement but are required to submit e certtfication form n the OCR to cbtm the exempts.
EEOP Certification Forms are evsfiabie at: http:/himiw.oJp.usdo^aboutA9arpdf8/cert.pdf.

17. UmltDd Ensilsh ProflelerKy ItEP): As danfted by Executive Order 13160. Improving Access to
Services for persona wSh UmSed E^ltsh Profidency. and rosufllng egency guidance, nadona) origin
dbcrtminalion indudes diserlminatton on the basis of rimHed English profidency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streeb Ad of 1666 a^ THte VI of the Civil
Rigtits Act of 1664. Ccntroaors must take reasonable steps to ensure thai LEP persons heve '
meaningful access to its praams.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancoment of Coritraetof Employee WhteUebtowof Protoctlens; The
'toOowing ihau apply to afl contracts that exceed the Simp&fied Acqutsitton Threshold' n defined In 48
CFR 2.1Q1 (cunontfy. $150,000}

COKTRACTOn EMPi.ovaE ihfrosTiEeiowER Rights and REOum£U£HT To Inform Employees of
WHJSTieeLOWER Rights (SEP 2013)

(0) Thb contract and employees working on this eordred will be subject to the whistleblower rights
end remedies to the pDot program on Contractor employee whisdebiower protections establbhed at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 626 of (he National Defense At4hortz8tion Act for Fisca} Year 2013 (Pub. L
112-236) end FAR 3.608.

(b) The Contractor shell inform Its employees in writing. In the predominani bnguoge of (he worktoroe.
of employee v^istlebloMmr rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712. os'descrlbed to section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Corrtrador shell insert the substance of this dause. toduding this paragraph (c). to aO
subcpRtracta over the simpfified ocqu'srtion threshold.

19. Subcordractora: OHHS reeognizas that toe Contractor may choose to use subcomradors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responstocEty and eccountsbBfiy tor the function(t). Prior to
subcontracting. ,the Corfiractor shaO evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
functlon(s). Thb b eccompOsM through a wrfiieii agreement that specifies adtvitlet end reporting
rasponaidQtieB of (he tubcona'ttcior and provides ̂  revoking the deiegaSon or imposing eanctens If
(he tubconlractor't perfbnnance b not odequate. Subcorfirsdors are lub/ect to (he same contractual
condUons as (he Contractor and (tie Contractor b responsible to ensure tubcontmctor compOance
«d1h those conditkms.
When the Contractor ddegales a function to a lubcontrector. the Contractor shall do the toOowing:
19.1. Evaluate toe prospective •ubcontractor'i ebillty to perform toe octivtties. before delegaling

the function

16.2. Have a wTinensgreemeni with the tubeontraetortha specifies ectNWei and reporting
reipqnilbimies and howsandions/revocaOoneKS be managed if the subcontractcr't
performance b not adequate

19.3. Monitor ttre subcontrador's performance on en ongoing bash
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19.4. Provido to DHHS an annual adndule Uenttfytng all aubcontractors, delegated llin^iona and
retpontttfliUea, and wtien the aubcontnctor^ pefformande vHH be revtewod

19.5. OHHS.ahall, 0 Its dlseretion. review end approve an suboontrads.

tr the Contractor tdentites defidendes or arees for Inrtprovement are identified, the Contractor shaO
take eorrectfve action.

DEFWmONS

As utad b IM Contract, the (bflowing tenni shall have the foOowtng meanlrtgs:

COSTS; ShaO mean those direct and Indirect Hems of oxpcnse detemUned by the Oepartmem,to be
alowabie and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting prtnclpias established in aixordanca
with state and federal laws, regublions. rulos end orders.

DEPARTMENT; NH Department of Health end Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDEUNES: ShaO mean that secbon of (he Contractor Manual which ie
entitled TinanciaJ Management GukMlnet* and which contains the regulations governing the financial
actMUes of contractor ogendes which have contracted with (he State of NH to receive hmds.

PROPOSAL If appflcable. shaD mean the document submitted by the Contrector on e form or forms '
regutred by the Department and oontabing a description of (he Services to be provlded to eOgM
MMdualS'by (he Contrector in accordance wtth (he (emu end cendiliOTS of the Contract and eettlng forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Conbact

UNIT: For each servlce'-thal the Contractor is to provide to efiglMe (ndivtdueb hereunder. shaB mean th0
.period of-time-octhafspedfled.BCDvlty determined by the Department and specified In ExMbii 6 of the
Contract

FEDERALISTATE^LAW: Wherever federal or state taw*, regutations, rules, orders, and pefides. etc. ere
referred to in the ConbscL the saJd reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulationa, etc. as
(hey may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: ShaO mean thai docxrment prepared by the NH Department of AdministratNe
Seivicei cbritiuib'gVodmpUtlOh of all regijlations promi^ted pursuant to the New Hampshire
AdministrBtlve Proceduree Act NH RSACh S41-A, (or the purpose of Imptementirtg State of NH and
federal regutations promuigatsd thereunder.

SUPPIANTINO other FEDER^ FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that furaJs provided under this.
Contract wfll rut supplant any exisUng federal funds avsBabie for these servicee.

Ezr*fi C - SpacU PrawCUoM Cotwivoot InSUH,
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REVtawwa TO aamAL

1. SApa^roi^ 4 of the GcnerO Provbiora of thU eontrm CortdWonxJ Nature of Agreement. t»
reduced fts foiKMvs;

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
NobMthmrtdina sny pfovltbn of thb Aflreement to the cbntrorv. oil obfigationt of the State
hwunder. InctuO^g eitihout flmHifflon. the eomhuanee of payment*, h vvhote or h pert,
jawtor thle Agreemcm are contlnpent upon eonSnueO appropriation or ovaUabflity of funds
indudinq any subsequent ehanges to the epproprtatlon or availability of A«dt effected by
any Jate or federal tegbiative or executhre action dim reduces, elWnatos, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or oveltabtiay of funding for this Agreement and the fr^npf of
Mrviees provided in Exhlbft A. Scope of Services, in whoJe or in part In no eWm shsO the
Slate be Estte for any payments hereunder in excess of appr^rlated or avaftaMe funds. In
^everrt of a reduaion. temtinatten or modiflcaUon of oppnprlated or availsble ftmdi. the
Stste Shan have the right to withhold payment until such fUnds become avaltabto. if ever
State shaU have the rtght to reduce, terminaie or modify services under this Agreement
bnmedletely upon gMrtg the Contmctor ncUee of such reduction, te/mhatlon or modWeatlon.
The State Shan not be reijuiped to trsnrfer funds from any otfter source or account hto the

• Accowrtf*) Identified in blocfc IS of dte Oeneral Provbiorts. Account Number, or any other
account In the event funds are reduced or unavaflable.

2. Stmparagraph lOof the Ocnemf Provhtons of thb oontraet TefmlrMrton. Is amended by cddino the
following bngusge: ^

10.1 The State may terminate (he Agreemertt m sny time fbr any reason, m the sob dbcretionof
the State. 20 days after giving the Contractor wrtoen notice thai the State b exmdsina Bs
option to terminate the Agreement

10.2 in the event of earty termination, the Cortrector shaD. wJIMn 15 days of notice of earty
termhattofl. devetop and sutxnit to the State a Transition Plan tor services uivler the
Agreement including but not limited to. Wentitying the present and iWure needs of'dlenti
reeeMng services under the Agreement end estabTohes s process to meet those needs:"-' •

10.J ^ Cwactor than fUJy cooperate with the State and shah promptfy provtde detaDed
Wormation to support the TransWon Plan including, but not limfied to. any Wormetion or
data requested by the SWe related lo the termination of the Agreement and TrmsJlta) Pt«i
and ihaO provide ongoing communicsUon and revbiorts of the Transition Plan to the gbte as
requested. •

10.4 Irt the event that Mnrtces under the Agreement. Induding but not Cmlted to clients reeeMng
se^lces under the Agreement are tranmioned to having services deUvered by another entity
Including contracted providers or the State, the Contraaor ahaii provide a process tor
uninterrupted delivery of services In the Transltioo Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shell estabtbh a method of raitifylng ctierrts and other affbcted IndMduab
about the transltian. The Corrtramor thai! include the proposed communications in lb
Transftion Plan submitted to the Slate as described abov«.

Tfto Oepartmajil reserves the right to renew the contract ft* up to four oddHena) years. tuUect to
w continuod avatobflHy of funds, aetbfactory perfermance of services and epproUl by ifw
Governor and Executive Council. '
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gffiTTFtCATmH RfiaABPlMO PftUP^E WOBKPLACe HEQUmCilEMTa

The Conlertor Ucntifled In Secdon 1.3 o1 the GenenJ Provitlont egrees to compty ««fth the pro^tsione of
Seetkra 5161<016O of the Onig-Ffee W«kplaee Act of 1988 (Pub. L 100-690. TlUe V. Subdtto D; 41
U.S.C. 701 «t o«q.), and fvrthef agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identmed h Secdont
1.11 end 1.12 o1 the General Provlstoni execute the following Certflcetiort;

ALTERMATlVe I • FOR ORANTK8 OTHgR THAU INOIVlDUALO

U8 OePARTMENT OF HEA1,TH AND HUMAN OERVICES - CONTRACTOR8
US pCPAATMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US OEPARTMENT OF AORICUUTURE - CONTRACTORS

TWs certification ts requked by the regulations ImptomorrtlnQ Sections 5151-5160 of the Druo-Free
Wertpiaco Act of 1988 (Pub. L10D690. Title V.&Atft)e 0:41 U.S.C. 701 et eaq.). The January 31
1889 regulrtofb ecre amended and published m Part II of the May 25.1990 Federal Regbter (paga
21661-21681), and require certAcation try grantees (arrd.by Werence, sub^rantaes and sub^
contractofi), prior to aeord, that iheyeO maffttaln a dru^froe worlipUce. Section 3017.630(c) of the

pfOvUta that a grantee (and by Inference, sub^rantees' and sub-ccntracton) that (s a State
"1*7 malre one certlftcation to the Department In each federal fiscal year In lieu of certWcates for
each grant duing the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below b a
mMoW representation of feet upon «4och reBance b placed when the agency awarda the grant False
eertlflcotron or vteWon of the certificotJon shaO be grounds for sutperalon of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or govemm^ wide suspension or debamrent Contractors using this form shotdl
send rl to:

Commbsloner '
NH Departmerfi of Health erxl Hunan Services
129 Pleaunt Street
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that It wffl or wfl eorrtlnue to provide a drug-free worhptaca by:
1.1. PuUbNng a statemem notifying eihpfeyees that the unlawful menufecture.dlstrbution.

dbpenslng. possession or use of a oontrofied substance Is prohibited in the grantee's
wor^oe and specifytng the actions that will be taken egairtsi employees for viotation of such
prohibition;

1.2.- Estab£shing en ongotng drug-free awareneu program to inferm employees about
1.2.1. The darigers of drug abuse In the worttpiace:
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaJning a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any ovaQitNe ̂ ug courueiing, rehabBitatjon. end employee assistance programs; end
1.Z4. The penalfies thai may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse vtofeUons

ooeurrbtg tn the workplece;
1.3. Making K a requirement that each employee to be ertge^ed in the perfcrmahcb of the grant be

gh«n a copy of the statement required by paregraph (a);
t.4. Ncdfying the employee In the ttstemcnt reiqulred by paragraph (a) that as o oonditon al

ernployment under the grant the employee wSl
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the itttem'enl; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer tn writing of hb Of her conviction for a vtolalton of a crtmlnaldA/g

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days efter such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency In rwtting, wtthin ten calertdar days after receiving notice under
iiAparsgraph 1.4.2 ffom an employee or odrerwtse receiving actual noUca of such corrvleborv '
Empfeyers of convicted employees must provide not^. tncfeding position tUe, to every grant
officer on vmose gram acUvby the convict^ emptoyee was working, urdeu the Federal agency

ExriM D-CertacsSonrtocrtfha Ouo ft— Ccnensw tretwi
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hn deslBiurtod « ctfttrd poim for the receipt of tuch nodcm. Nodce theU include (he
Identtficetlon numberts) of each ofleded grtnt;

1.6. Tflkfng orw of (ho feOowtng acOons. within 30 calender days of receMng rtoUce under
tubperegrai* t .4.2, with respect to eny employee who b so ccnvided

epqroprtate personnel oction egelnsi sud) on employee, up to and biduding
termUetton, consistent with the requiremer^ts of (he ftehabintoUof\ Act of 1973 as
emended; .or

1.6.2. Requlrtng such employee to partictpete sattsfactorOy in s drug ebuse ossistsnee or
rehaMinttton program approved tor such purposes by • Federal. State, or tocai heo&h,
low ortforcemem, or other epproprtete agency, •

1.7. Matiho 0 good fe#h effort to continue to molnteln e drug-free wofltpbce through
bnplementmbn ofpemgrephs 1.1.1.2. t.3,1.4. t.s.ond 1.8.

2. The grantee moyhiert In the space provided below the site<s)f» the perfomwtoe of wofti done to
connection ttoUi the specific grant.

Ptoce of PefforTnanee.(stree( rtdress. dty. county, state, jfp code) (list each location]

Check O If there ere Mrti;ptKes on (Be (hat a/e not toentifted here.

Contractor Name:
Community Action Program Belknsp-Merrlnuck Counties, Inc.

S/2S/2017

^9*® Nome: (Ul^ U
TWe: Executive Director

0 - Csnaoaen rseadne Orvg ft— Certtsdar INOdi ^
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CERTmCATWW REQ*BD«ltQ LOgBYTHQ

The Contnctor tdeniifled in Section 1.3 of the Oenera] Provisions ogrees to cor^ with the provisions of
Section 319 d PubOc Lew 10M21. Government wide Gutdance for New RestilctJons on Lobbying, end
31 U.S.C. 1302. end further egrees.to have the Contreetor'srepresentsttve, es Uentdled In Se^ns 1.11
end 1.12 ofthe Genera) Provisions execJte the foOowtng CertlflcaliQn:

US OEPARTWENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONfTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs Cmdicete eppBceble program co^rared):
'Temporary Assistance to Ne^ FemSes under TlOe IV-A
*ChBd Support Enforcement Program under TiOe IV*D
"Soeis) Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Mediciid Program i0ide THle XIX
*Commun)ty Services Blocfc Oraril under Tltie VI
*ChUd Care Oevelcpment Block Grant under Tdte IV

The urtderaigned certifies, to the best of his or her kn^Medge end belief, that:

1. Mo Federal appropriated funds have t>een paid or wlD be paid by or on behalf of the undersi^d. to
any person tor infiuenctng or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Cortgross. an officer or employee of Congress, or an emploi^e of a Member of Congress in
oonnecdon wtlh the swarding of my Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment or

'  modification of any Federal contract, grant loan, or coopereilve agreement (and by specific mention
sub-granlee'or sub<ontraetor).

2. H any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or wO be paid to any person for
Influendng or attempting to Mtuence an officer or employee of any agency, o Member of Congroas.
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress In connection wQh this
Federal contract g^. loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub^ntae or su^
contractor), the imderilgned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (pisdoiure Form to
Report Lobbying, bi accordar>ce with tts Instructiora, attached and identified as Starulard Exhibit E«l.)

3. The undersigned shaO require thai the language of (his certification be Included in the award
document for sub-awards at ell tiers (indudirig subcontracts, sut>-grants, end contracts under grarrts,
bans, and cooperatrve agreements) and that all lub^eci^nts shaB certify ar>d disclose accordingty.

This certification Is a mstertal raprasentatton of fad upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification Is a prerequisite for making or entering Into this
transaction.mposod by Section 1352, TWe 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to f3e the requt^
certification shall be subjeci to a ctvfl penalty ̂  rioi less thart $10,000 ar\d not rrwratfian $100,000 for
each such f^ure.

Contractor Name;
Community Action Progrim Bdknsp'Mcrrlmsck Counties, inc.

Data Name; lulpllUitkHdd
X  Title; 'F.xecutivc Direct

Eeee e - CofClcsOon ftegtrdng Lebbyhg
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CeartHCATKMi HEOAWPrnQ MBAWMBfT. fiUSPEWfltOM

AMD QTHBI REBPOMSIBfLfTY MATTBia

Th6 Controctor Identifbd In SocUon 1.3 of the General Provfolons agrees to compty wfth ̂  provhiom of
Executive Ofltce of the Pmeideni Executive Order 12S40 end 4$ CFR Pert 76 reoerding Debefment
Suspension, and Other ReeporttCbOtyMettert. and further egreee to have the Contrector'e .
representathre, at Identffled h Secfions f.il end t.t2 of the General Provtsions execute the tolowtng..
CerMcation:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTtFlOATlON

1 ■ By signing and tubmRdng this propdsal (contracO. the prospective prtm^ pcrttdpant ts prolog the
certHtcation set out Mow.

2. The Inabfity of a person to provide the certification required below wU) not rtecessarily resuB In denial
of psiddpation b) this covered transectloa If necessary, the prospective partidpant shaO submit an
exptaratka> of why R cannot provide the certification. The certification or exptanatlon wfii be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (OHHS)
delarmlnrton whether to errtar into this transaction. Howwer. failure of the prospedhro p^ary
partidpant to fumteh a certiflcation or an explanation shail disquaUfy such person from partidpallon In
this transaction.

3. The cenfflcation in thbdause Is a matertal representation of fact upon which reliance was pbced
e^ien DHHS determined to enter Into thb transaction. If ft b later determined that the prospective
prtmary partidpant lmow(r>gfy rendered an erroneous certfttcation, in addition to other remedies
availat^ to the Federal Gos^mment OHHS may tarmlnate this transaction for cause or defaul

4. The prospecthm primary participant shaS provide Immediate ofttten notice to the OHHS ̂ency to
whom this proposal (contract) b submltM If at any tinte the prospective primary ptrticip^' learns
that Its certHlcation was erroneous when submitlad or hu become erroneous by reason of changed
drcumstances.

5. The terms 'covered bransactiorr.' 'debarred.' 'suspended.' 'IrteGgible.' 'lower tier covered
trsttactlon.' 'partidpant.* 'person.' 'primary covemd trinsection.* 'prtndpal.* 'proposal.* end
*volunta/Oy excluded.* as used In thb clause, have the rrwantrrgs set out in the Deftnftlons and
Coverage sections of the rules (mptementing Executive Order 12549:45 CFR Port 76. See 0>e
ottached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participanl agrees by aubmittjng this proposal (contact) that, should the
proposed covered transaction it entered into, it that) not knowingly enter into ohy lower tier covered
transaction wtlh a person'who b debarred, suspended, declared In^lble, or vorurrtartiy excluded
from participation in thb covered transMion, vntess authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary partidpam further ogreee by submftting this proposal that' it w9l include the
dause titled 'Certification Regarding Oebvment Suspension. ineCgibBlty and Vobmtary Exclusion •
IjOwer Tier Co^red Transactions.* provld^ by OHHS. wtihout modification. In a9 lower tier covered
transactions and In aO soBcftations lower tier covered transactions.

6. A participant In a covered transaction may rely upon a certiftcatlon of a prospective participanl In a
tower tier covered transaction that It b not debarred, suspended, tnetlgltife. or Invohmtarlly excluded
from the covered transaction, unless ft knows that the certification b erroneous. A participant may
dedde ffie method and ffequency by wfi.ich ft determines the eOgibSly of Its prtr>dpab. Each
partidpant may. but b not required to. check the Nonproctfemenl List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing eontafr^ In the foregoing shall bo cortstrued to require estabfishment of a system of records
in order to render in good fath the certlficaUon required by thb dause. The knowledge and

ErfftS f ~ CwOTctSw RappOg Chbwmtnt. 8uip<n«lan " CwCrvcttr Mtbi
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information of a partitipant not raouiretf to excood that «tiich b normaOy pooaested by a prudent
peraon in the ordinary eourae of businesi dealinpa.

10. Except fbr transactiona euthortied under pa/ssreph 6 of theae instructtone. H a partidpent rn a .
covered timucdon kno«fri(py enter* into a lower tier covered banaacdon «tth a perton %«he la
suapended. debarred. IneOo&iie. or vofunlartTy exciuded from partkipatibn in thb tranaaction. In
addition to other rametfo* avaflable to the Fedora) povemment. OHHS may termlnata thia tranaactton
foreeuM or defautL

PRIMARY COVERED TfV^NSACTIONS

11. The proapectM primary psrtidpant certitea to the beat of ita knowtadge and beOef, that d and da
pdndpah: '
11.1. ere not preaenOy debarred, auspended. propoaed for debanment. dectared IneBglMe. or

vobmtarlly excluded from covered tranaacdona by any Federal department or apewy;
11.2. have rtolwdhln a three-year period preceding thbpropoaal (contract) been convicted of or had

a cM) ludpmerd rendered opalnst them for commbaion of fraud or a criminal offenae In
cormecdon with obtainlnp. aftemptlnp to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
tranaacdon or a contract under a public tranaactton; violadon of Fedaral or Slate antitrust
atatutea or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, tmbery. fablflcation or destruction of
records, making fabe atatemenb, or reeeMng stolon property:

11.3. are not prcaerdfy indicted for otherwtae crtminaliy or cWy chvged by a govemmenta] entity
(Federal. State or local) wdh commission of any of the ofTenaes enumerated In paragraph (0(b)
^ thb certification: and

11.4. have not wtthln a three-year period preceding thb appticadon/propoaal had orw or more pubBc
transactions (Federal. Stata or local) terminated for cause or defaufi.

12. Where the proapoctfvepflmeryparddpantb unable to certify tio any of the atatemenb In thb <
cerdfl(»tion. such prospective parddpant ihafl enach an eiplanation to thb proposal (coinract).

LOWER TIER COVEREp TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and tiAmihing thb lower tier proposal (contract), the prospecdva lower der pa/ddpani as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certiflei to the beat of ib knovdedge and befief that it and Ha prkidpab;
13.1. are not presently debarred, auspended. proposed for debarment. dectared IneSglble. or

voluntarily exshided from pardci^on In thb trartsacdon by arty foderal.depaftment or agency.
13.2. vdtere the prospecthm lower tier parddpant b unable to certify to any of the above, such

proapecdve participant shall anach an explanation to thb proposal (cordract).

14. The prospective lower tier partScipanl further agrees by aaibmittiig thb proposal (contract) that it w<D
Include thb dause entitled 'Cerdtobon Regarding Debarment Suspension. tneiiglbBlty, and
Voluntary ExcMsion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions.' wfthout modification in all lower tier covered
trsnsacdoftt and in efl toOdtadons for lower Uer covered transactions.

Comractor Name:

Community Action Pro^am Belkosp-Merrimack Counties. Inc.

5/2V2017

TMe

Oato Name:^ Ral^Lltdef
Executive Director
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"ffWTS rmmw> to
nOeMk KQN«8CRHItliATK»L EQUAL TREATKeiff Of PAITM^ASgD OftQAllgATIOHa AJiD

WfflTLEBtOWfER PftOTgCTlOMa

The Conlracto# IdenWed In Section 1.3 of the Genera) Provtoiona sgreea by signature of the Controcter'B
repreaetttafive 03 idanUfled tn Seettofts 1.11 and l.l2of the GervraiPrevislona. to executetfwfbfloiebw
certification:

Contmctor comply, and <eD] require any «ubgraRtees or subcontractor* to comply, with any applicabie
fed^ nondlBalmlnatton requirements, which may fndude:

• the Omnibus Crime Corttrol and Safe Streets Act of 19M (42 U.S.C. Sectton 3769d) which proMbita
redplenti of fedora) funding under tWa ataluto from diacrlminating. either In employment prsctioea or In
the defiwery of aervtoea or beneflta, on the baala of race, color, r^ion, naticnsl origin, end aex The Act
mquirea certain recipienta to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the JuWnlle JusUco DeOnquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopta by
reference, (he cMj rtghti obDgatlora of the Safe Streeta Act. .Recipients of federal fun^ under this
itatuta ere prohibited ffom dbcrlminatmg. either (n employment practicea or In the delivery of aervleea or
benefha, en the ba^ of race. edor. r^lon. national origin, and aex Tte Act Indudea Equal
Employment Oppo^rtity Plan requirefnents:

- the CM Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Sectkm 2000d. which prohlbtti redplenta of federal flnandai
aaaistanoe from dlscrfmlnstlng on the boats of race, color, or naUortai origin In any progrem or ectMty);

- the RehabiEtatfofi Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohbits recipienta of Federal firumdal
aasotanee from dlacriminatlng on the t»sia of disability, In regard to emptoymerri and the deCvory of
aenfces or benefto. in any program or activity;

• the Amcrlcarts with OlaabiDtlea Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sectlona 12131-54). which prohibita
dbcrtminatton and ensures equal opportunity for persona wfth diaabllities in emptoymerU, State and beat
government servlcea. pubQc eecommodabons. commercial tactildea. and transportation;

• the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sectlona 1681.1583.168S^). ̂ich prohbto
discrtmiriatlon on the bsais of eex m federally assisted education programs;

•theAgeOlKifmination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6108-07). which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age b programs or actlvltiea receiving Federal finaiKlal assistance, it does not Incfude
employment discrimination;

• 28 C.F.R. pt 31 (U.S. Departmertt of justtee Regubtions - OJJOP Gram Programs); 26 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Oepcrtmcnt of Justice Reguiatlcns - Norbiscrlmlnation; Equal Employment Opportunity; PoOdes
end Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faHh-besed and community
o^antzatiORS); Executive Order No. 13559. which provide fundamerTtal prlrtdples and poGcy-making .
crttarla for partnerships with falth-bssed and nelghbofhood organizations:

I

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Oeportmenl of Justiee Regulatioru - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whlsaebiovror protections 41 u.S.C. |47i2 andThe NatiOAAl Oefervsa Auth»t»tlan
Act (NOAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (P^b. L. 112-239. enacted January 2.2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contrect Emplo)^ Whlstlebiovmr Protections. *^ch protects employees against
reprisal for certain whbOe blowtng actMtiet In connection wQh fMeral grants end contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representalion of tact upor> which reliance Is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certWcattai or violation of the certification shaB be,grounds for
susperMlon of payments, suspension or termination of grarrts. or government wide suspension or
debarmenL

EjAUG
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In the event • Federal or State court or Federal or State adminltbatjve agefxy mihee a findho of
di3crlnt(natton'8fter a due process heartig on the grounds of race, color, reflgton, nxttona) origin, or sex
agalnsi a recipient of hotds. the redptent «4D forward a copy of the finding to .the Office for CM] Rights, to
the appDcable cortracdng egenqr or dhrtsfon wRhin the Oepertment of HeeBh and Human Servicee. and
to the Department of Health artd Human tenrlces Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the Ganeret Provisions agrees by aJgnature of the Contractofi
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 ard 1.12 oftheGerwral Provisions, to execute the toUovrfr^
certAcatton;

I. By signing and submltttng this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to compty with the provisions
Indicated above.

Contractor Name;
Community Action Progrsm Belkntp-MerrinsckCountlet, fnc.

S/2S/2017

Data Name:

TWe: Executive Director'

eoteac
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CCRTIFlCATIQIi REQARDIWa gHVmOWWEMTAL TOflACCO BMOOT

Uw 103'227. Port C - Environment*! Tobecoo Smoke. i!to known at.tbe Pro-CWWren Actot 1094
(Ad), requires thet smokino fwt be pennttlod !n any poition of any Indoor fadDty owned or based or
corded tor by an entity and used roudnefy or regulady fbr me provision of heafm. day care. eduesUon
of^ry serwces ̂ Odren under the age of i B, if the aervlees ere funded by Federd programs eflher'
dtferfy or through State or beat governments, by Federal grant cohfroct. ber». or ben guarantee The

fw! api^ to cWUfren't aervlees provided in prtvale residences, faeflitles funded adefy by "
hMleare P«rtbna d (adiltba used for Inpeltent drug or alcohol Oaatment. FeSure ■

to c^ry With the pfwUbfts of the law may resua in the imposition of e Civil monetary penalty Of Up to91000 per day andbr the impotttbn of en administrative compQanee order on ttb resportsibb entity.

The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provtabns agrees, by sJgnati^e of the Corrtractor'#
repfMerrtetivB at Uentified In Sectbn 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provlsbni. toexe^thefoftowtng
cefeflcation: ~

By^nlng M submitiing this contract the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efteH to comply
«4th 8D applcabto pmvlsicns of .Public Law 103-227. Pen C. known as the Prc^Children Ad of I9M

Contractor Name:
Community Actbn Progrtm Belknip-Merriiiuck Counties. Inc.

1.

5/25/2017

Neme:

Executive Otrccloritto:

Date N«ne- vi.jpHiutOe
T

EjMMH.Ca«lc«tbiRietfillra CftWwlwb«di
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HEALTM IMSUWAWCE POirrABlJnf ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

Tho Contmctor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
cornpty wHh the Health Insurance Portability end Accountability Act. Pubtic Law 104>191 and
wHh the Standards for Prtv^ ond Security of IndMduaSy Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFft Parts 160 and 164 applicable b bustness associates. As defined hereb. 'Business
Associate* shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor thai
receive, use or have access to protected health informatioo under this Agreefncnt and ̂Covered
Entity* shaB mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health end Human Services.

(1) DeflnlUonfl.

a *Bmnch* shisfl have the aame meaning as the term "Breach* In section 164.402 of Title 45.'
Code of Federal Regulstions.

b. ■BurinesB Assoctele- has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Tide 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Enlftv* has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Tide 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Oesionated Record,Set* Shall have tho same meaning as the term 'designated record sat*
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data AooreQBtiQn* shad have the same meaning as the term "data aggregalion* in 45 CFR
'Seictiort "164:501.

t

f. 'Heatih Cere Obergttens* shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations'
tn45CFRSectiQn'164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act* meansilho Heatth Information TecAnotogy for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TrtleXlll. SubtWd'D. Pert 1 4 2 of the American Recovery and Retnvestf^n! Act of
2669: ' ■ ■ " ' .

h. 'HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Ad of 1696. PuUic law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individuaify Identifiabia Health
tnfvmallpn. 45 CFR Parts 160.162 er>d 164 end amendments thereto.

I. 'IndrvktuaT shaD have the same meaning as tho term *iftdividuar In 45 CFR Section 160.103
end ShaD include a person who qualifies as a personal representative In accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

J. 'Prfvacv Rule' shall n»an the Standards for Prfvacy of individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 end 164, promulgated under HIPaX by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

iL "Proiectfld Health Irrformation' shaO have the seme meaning as the term 'proteded heeJlh
Intefmation' in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the Irrfbrmatlon created or received by
Busness Assodate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

&MWI CortntfvMtm
Hum twrvx* PonttOl Ad
euilr«aAiMdfttiAorMm*MPw»i«re o^JJXSjr/
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i. •Reoulred bv Law* shall have the same meaning as the term 'required hy law* In AS CFR
Section 164.103.

ra 'SfiSfiW 9t\aa mean the Secretary of the Depaitment of Health onS Human Servtcas or
hta/her dMlgnee.

n. 'SecurtN Rule' ehaa mean the Secumy Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health fnCormetion at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0- 'Unsecured Protected Heatth Information' meana omtBclBd twrtth Infomuitinn thai in rwrf
secured by 6 technology startdard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuBis arrd is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American Nalionat Standartls
Irstltute.

p. Other Peffnltions - AD terms not othenvisa defined herein shall have the m^nntng
estabBshed under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160; 162 and 164, as emended from time to time, and the
HrTECH

Ad

(2) Buslneea Aasoctate Use and PlaeloiuTa of Protected Health Infomadon.

a. Business Associate shaD not use. disdose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined imder
ExtiiUt A of the Agreement Further, Business Associate. Including but not Cmited to bQ
fta directors, officers, employees and agents, shell not use, disdose, maintain or transmrl
PHI In any manner that would constltule a vidBtion of the Privacy arid Security Rule.

b. Business Assodste rnay use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper managerrrent and adminislratlon of the Business Associate:
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth In paragraph d. below: or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Endty.
S

c. To the extent Business Associate is pormrtted under the Agreement to disdose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonabia assurances from the third party that such PHI win be held confldentiaQy and 'i
used or further disclosed only as reqdred by law or for the purpose for which A was
disclosed to the third party; ar^ (11) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Auodatfl, in accordance with the'HIPAA Privacy. Secu^, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confldantlaCty of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowtedge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not. unlsss such disclosure Is reasonably necessary to
preytde services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basts that N Is required by law. without first notifying
Cm/ered Entity so that Covered Errlity has sn opportunity to object.to the dlsdosure and
to seek appropriate ̂ lef. If Covered Entity objects to such disdosure, the Business

4^3^4 f EatMl CoftiOvMUM.
HoaAMnMrwwt PwtrtBtjr Ad
BuftiMM Au^U AOTMfflaiK ✓ f'
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AsaoclM ehal) refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted an
remedies.

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additionai restrtctloro over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shaO be bound by such additional restrictions and ̂ t) not disctose PHI in vtoiabon of
such addhlonaJ restriction* and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

<3) QMiPstlons and ActMthm cf Bustneim Aaaoclste.

a. The Business Associate shaO notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer ImmetSatefy
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information rwt provided for by the Agreement includtng breaches of urtsecured -
pratected:heaRh Inforrnation end/or eny security Incident that may have an Impact on the
protected health Information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Businesa Associate shaO Immedlatefy perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shaQ include, but not be
limited to;

0 The^nature and extent of the protected health information involved. Including the
typ8s:of identifiers and the likelihood of rfrHdentification;

o Theiunauthorized person used the protected health Information or to whom the
. disclosure was made;
0 Whethertheprotected health information was actually Bc<tuifed or viewed
c. The:axtent to which the risk to the protected health Information has been

mitigated.

The Business Aiuodate shad complete the risk assessment within 46 hours of the
breach and immedlatefy report the findings cf the rtsk assessment In wrfting to the
Covefed Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with oil sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shaD make available eD cf its inlemal policies and procedures, books
and reconis relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
receh«d by the Business Assodete on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes ̂  determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Ruto.

e. Business Associate shall require eD of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agrwment. to agree in writing to adhere to the sante
restrictions and condltfona on tha use end disclosure of PHI contained herein. Including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (1). The Covered Entity
shaD be cortsidered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contrsctofe business associate
agreements with Contractoris intended business associates, who will be receMng PHI

EMI ComennMAj^^^
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pureuant to this Aofwment. with rights of enfofcofnarrt arvt Wemnification from such
busmesa asaodataa who shaB be governed by standard Paragraph 9t3 of the standard
cofltrad provision& <P-3^ of this Agmmeni ̂  the purpose of use and disdosure of

/ protected heafth information.

f. ^rihift five (5) business doyeo'f receipt of owrtttan request from Covw«d Entity,
Business Associate shafl make evaiiabte during normat bustr^ess hours et Ha offtces en
records, books, agreements, policies end procedures relatlr>g to the use arxJ dtsciosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of errobUng Covered Entity to determine
Bustness Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

. g. Within ten (10) bustness days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business As^iate ehall provUe access to PHI in a Donated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an Individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524. '

h. Within ten (10) business days of reoeivlno a written request from Covered Entity for an
emendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in e Oesignatad Record
Set the Business Associate shaO make such PHi avaSabie to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fuffiD its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

I. Business Associate shaQ document such disctosures of PHI end information reiated to
such disdosures os would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by en
indhridu^ for en accounting of disdosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.S28.

j.. Wrthin ten (10) business days of recehring a wrtttan request from Cover^ed Entity for a
request for an accounting of disdosures of PHI, Bu8lr>ess Associate shell make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obOgetions
to provide an accounting of ̂sctosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.526.

k. In the event erry indhridual requests access to, amendmerrt of. or accounting of PHI
dIrecOy ftom the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibSity of responding to forwarded requests. However. If forwarding (he
mdivlduars request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or tho Business
Assoaate to yfotate HIPAA and the Privacy arvf Security Rule, the Bustness Associate
shail instead respond to the IndiytduaTs request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicabte.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reeson. the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, ail PHI
received from, or created or received by tho Business Associate In connection with the
Agreement, end shaO not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. if return or
destruction b not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agraemerd. Buslrwss Assodate-shefl continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHi and emit further uses end disctosures of such PHI to those
purposes thai make the return or destruction Infoasibto. for so long es Business y*

EsNUI CtttnaarWWh
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Aftsocbte maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, In its sole discretion, requires that the
Busing Asaodate destroy any or qD PHI. the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity thai the PHI has been destroyed.

<4) OWqattone of Coverad Entttv

a. Covered Entity shell notify Business Associate of any changes or limllatpon(s) in Ks
Notice of Prtv^ Practices pronded to IndMduab in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520. to the extant that such change or Krhrtatioo may effect Business Associate's
use or disckksure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Buslrkoss Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of pemdssion provtd^ to Covered Entity by indivlduab wtiose'PHl may be used or
dt^sed by Business Assodata imder this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

e. Covered entity shaD promptly notify Business AssodMe of any restrictiorks ori the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agre^ to in aooordanco with 45 CFR 164.522.
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Ternilnatlon for Cauae

tn addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard tenns and conditions (P*37} of this
Agreement the Covert Entity may ImmediateV terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowtedge of a breach by Business Associate of (he Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibil 1. The Covered Entity may either Immedistety
terminate tho Agreement or provide en opportunity (or Business Associate to cure the
eOeged breach within a timeframe spedflied by Covered Entity, tf Covered Entity
detemdnes that neither termination nor cure Is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
ytdatton to the Secretary.

(6) Mtocelbneoia

a. Dennlitefts and Reoutatorv References. Ail terms used, but not olhenNlse defined herein,
shaO have the same meaning as those terms In the Privacy and Security Rub, amended
ttom time to time. A referenoe in the Agreement, as amended to inctude this Exhibit I. to
a Section In the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Armndmenl Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to emend the ̂ reement. from time to time as Is necessafy for Covered
Entity to comply whh the changes in the requirements of HIPAA. the Privacy and
Security Rub. end applicabb federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate eeknowtedges that It has no owrwrehip rights
with respect to the PHI prwided by or aeated on behalf of CMereld Entity.

d.' (rrtereretatton. The parties agree that any ambiguity In the Agreement shaO be resotved
to permit C^ered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rub. ^

S/20t4 ExtiMi CortiMlut ~
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Soflfeoation. If any lefm or cor^rtion of this Exhibit I or the appQcation thoreof to any
p«rson(8) or drcurmtance is held invalid, such Invalidity shaO not affect other taims or
conditions which can be given effect without the mvaU term or condition; to this end the
terms and corKfrtions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Sufvtvnt. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use ertd disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI. extenslorts of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and Indemnification provisions of section (3) e end Paragraph 13 of ̂
standard tarms and conditions (P-37). shaO survive the termination of the Agreement

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. Iho parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Ccmrnunity Action Program
Belknip«Menimack Coundet. Inc.

The

s5 re of Authorized Representative

Name of Authorized .Representative

bir<t<Li-ofc ib^H S
Title of Authorized Rapresentstive

Data

Name Contractor

of ortzed Re•SIgnatu

Ralph Liulefield

Name of Authorized Representative

Executive Dirgctor
Title of Authorized Representative

S/25/2017
Date

ywi4 EdMI

Hwflh mwrtfo Pennilrir Aci
euslmu AModato AffMnvnt

PaesSofS

CorXnOof MM,
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CERTinCATIQW RgQAHaWQ TWB FEPgRAL PIJWDWQ ACCOUMTABIUTY AMD TRAW8PAREWCY

ACUFFATAICQMPUANCE

Tho Fodenl Funding AeeountsM^ end Trensparency Act (FFATA) requlrdi pdme owardtei ot indMdutf
Federel gmnts equai to or grteter then $2S.000 end ewvded on or after Oct^r 1.2010. to repoti on
data related to exeeuthre oompeAMdon end awodatad ftret-tkr lub^ranti of $25,000 or more, tf the
inMal evord Is batow $25,000 but tubiaquent grant modlAcationi result tn a total oward equal to or over
$25,000. the award Is subject to tne FFATA reporting requirements, as of tbe data of tlte award.
In occordance vAh 2 CFR Pad 170 (Reporting Sudaward and Executive Compensation tnCormaUon). Ow
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report tho (oBowtng Information tor any
lubaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of oward

i: Furiding agency
4. NAICS cade for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program sourca
6. Award Ude descrlptNe of the purpose of the furullng action
7. Location of the enlfty
S. Pflndple place of pertormanoe
0. tjnlque.fdentiSer of the entity (DUNS d)
10. Total compensation and names of the top executives It.

10.1. Mam than 60%.of onnual gross revenues are ftom the Federal goverrvneni end those
revenuesare^greater than $25M armusQy and

10.2. Compensation information Is not slreodyavsasble through reportirtg to the SEC.

Pitme grarft recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 00 days. In which
the award or award-amcndrient Is rrttde.

The Contractor tdentfftad In Section V3 of Ihe General Rrovlsioni agrees to eampty wtlh the provisions of
The Federal Fundlng-AcoourdabilHy and Transparency Ad, PubBcLaw 109'2&2 end PubDcLawt 110*252,
end 2 CFR Part 170.(Repo«tng S^i^wsrd ertd Executive Compensation Information), end ftalher agrees
to have the Contrect^8:representetive, as Identifted in Sectlont 1.11 end 1.12 of the General Provbloos
execute the foUowtng CertWceUon:.
The below named director agrees to provide needed information as outlirred above to the NH
Department of Health-end Humen Servlm orvl to comply wfth all eppflcable provlsiens of Ihe Federal
Financial Accounlabifily end Trarisparerwy Ad.

•' Contradof Name:
Community Action Progrtm Bclkrtap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

5/15/2017

Date UtdtBeld)Name

TMe Executive Director

EMM J - CwdcaUoA Rsewdhg 9« F«oin] Fffi0)n0 Camnctar tnUOi
AmunUbBy And TraMpWWCy Ad (FFATA) Cwnplinoft

CuCM(Sni«7i> F^ldl 0«W.
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FORMA

As ihe Contractor WcntBed In SwJJon 1.3 ctf 9)o Gerwral Provltloftt. Icenlfr(^a1l^e rtaMftseatotha
bdoa Qsted questions are Ove artd accurate.

1. Tne DUHS number for yoia entity ta: 07-399-7S04

2. In your busineu or orosnlzAtlon't procedr^ completod nscei year. «d your business V ouantzatlon
receive 0) 60 percent or more of your aruwai Qross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts •
bans, grares. sub^rents, end/or cooperatNe ogreementt; and (2) 625.000:000 v nwe in annud
gross re>«mjes from U.S. faderaJ contracts, subcontracts, toans. grants suborants and/or
cooperattve agreements? '

.NO .YES

If the antaer lo #2 above ts NO, stop here

If the answer to 62 above b YES. ptosse er^swer the foOowtng:

accoM to intermation about the compansattoo of the etecutives In yote
business V oqjartizatbn thfough padodic reports filed under section 13(o) v \ 5<d) cf the Sacurltlea
Exchange Ad of 19M (IS U.S.C.76>n(a), 78^d)) or section OtCM of the mtemal Revenue Coda of
1966?

.NO yes

if tha.emwer to OS above b YES, stop here

If the answer to 03 above b NO. pbasa answer the following;

4. The names end eompensallon of the ftve most highly compenaeted officers in your business or
organtzstlon are as foflows;

Name;

Name;

Name;

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount

Amount.

Amount.

Amount

cuonwnieni

EMM J - CMdSaOen RspuCbp Pw Fadent F«a^
AecnrtseOy Ano Tmpcrvncy (FFATA) Casalww*
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